Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors
City of Texarkana, Arkansas
216 Walnut Street

Agenda - Monday, November 20, 2023 - 6:00 PM

Call to Order

Roll Call

Invocation given by Director Laney Harris

Pledge of Allegiance led by Public Works Director Tyler Richards
CITIZEN COMMUNICATION
A limit of five (5) minutes per person is allotted for citizens to express their concerns to the
Board of Directors, with a maximum of fifty (50) minutes reserved for Citizens

Communication.

Please fill out a Citizen Communication Card with your name and contact information for the
City Clerk's records.

PRESENTATION(S)
1. Proclamation declaring November 25, 2023, as Small Business Saturday. (CCD)

CONSENT
2. Approval of the minutes of the regular meeting November 6, 2023. (CCD) City Clerk Heather
Soyars

ACTION ITEM(S)

3. Adopt a Resolution to reschedule the December 4, 2023 Board of Directors meeting.
(ADMIN)

4. Adopt an Ordinance to amend Chapter 6. Aviation of the City of Texarkana, Arkansas, Code
of Ordinances. (AIRPORT) Airport Director Paul Mehrlich

NON-ACTION ITEM(S)

None

BOARD OF DIRECTORS' COMMENTARY



CITY MANAGER REPORT
NEXT MEETING DATE: Monday, December 4, 2023

ADJOURN

2023 City Calendar

Annual Christmas Parade - Monday, December 4th

Founders’ Week Celebration — December 4th — 10th

Texarkana Rec Center Calendar

Ageless Grace - Mondays — 2PM — 3PM
Gym Open - Mondays, Wednesdays & Fridays — 8AM - 7PM & Saturdays - 8AM — Noon
Dance Fitness - Tuesdays - 6PM & Saturdays - 11AM
Let's Tow the Line - Thursday, November 30th
Breakfast with Santa - Saturday, December 9th - 8AM

Come Rock with Us - Wednesday, December 20th - 1-2PM & 5-6:45PM



CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

AGENDA TITLE: Proclamation declaring November 25, 2023, as Small Business
Saturday. (CCD)

AGENDA DATE: November 20, 2023

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance] Resolution] Other[X:

DEPARTMENT: City Clerk

PREPARED BY: Heather Soyars

REQUEST: N/A

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A

SUMMARY:: N/A

EXPENSE REQUIRED: N/A

AMOUNT BUDGETED: N/A

APPROPRIATION N/A
REQUIRED:
RECOMMENDED N/A
ACTION:

EXHIBITS: Proclamation



CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

AGENDA TITLE:

Approval of the minutes of the regular meeting November 6, 2023.
(CCD) City Clerk Heather Soyars

AGENDA DATE: November 20, 2023

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance[d Resolution[J OtherX: Minutes
DEPARTMENT: City Clerk Department
PREPARED BY: Heather Soyars, City Clerk
REQUEST: Approval of meeting minutes.
EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A

SUMMARY': Approval of meeting minutes
EXPENSE REQUIRED: N/A

AMOUNT BUDGETED: N/A

APPROPRIATION N/A

REQUIRED:

EXHIBITS: Meeting minutes.



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors
City of Texarkana, Arkansas
216 Walnut Street

Minutes - Monday, November 06, 2023 - 6:00 PM

Mayor Allen Brown called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM.

PRESENT: Mayor Allen Brown, Assistant Mayor Ward 1 Terry Roberts, Ward 2 Director Laney
Harris, Ward 4 Director Ulysses Brewer, Ward 5 Director Danny Jewell, and Ward 6 Director Jeff
Hart.

ALSO, PRESENT: City Manager Robert Thompson, City Clerk Heather Soyars, and Deputy City
Clerk Jenny Narens.

ABSENT: Ward 3 Director Steven Hollibush and City Attorney Joshua Potter.
Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance given by Assistant Mayor Terry Roberts
CITIZEN COMMUNICATION

Donald Riddle, 1622 County Avenue, wanted to commend the City and the employees who helped
with the concert this past Friday. He said the concert was a great success and he cannot wait for
the next one.

James May, 1716 Pearl Street, said he still had problems with the condemned houses around him.
He said the smell was too much to bear and now it was affecting his health.

Director Harris read a proclamation for Business Appreciation Month.

PRESENTATION(S)
1. Presentation of the City of Texarkana, Arkansas Employee Service Awards. (ADMIN)

Linda Matthews ADMIN 10 Years
Corey Elliott TWU 5 Years

Pam White TWU 20 Years



CONSENT

Assistant Mayor Roberts made the motion to adopt the Consent agenda, Seconded by Director

Brewer. The motion carried and the following item was approved:

2. Approval of the minutes of the regular meeting October 16, 2023. (CCD) City Clerk Heather
Soyars

ACTION ITEMS

3. Resolution No. 2023-96 authorized the City Manager to enter into a contract with Garland
Company and RBT Roofing for a new triplex roof and sealing the exterior building and
windows. (BI-STATE) Building Maintenance Manager Kristine Sargent (City Attorney
reviewed and approved the proposal)

After a brief discussion, the motion to adopt the resolution made by Director Jewell, Seconded by
Director Brewer.

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Brewer, Director
Jewell, and Director Hart.

The motion carried 6-0 and the Mayor declared the resolution adopted.

4. Consider the following action concerning the clean-up of fifty-five (55) nuisance properties.

Conduct a Public Hearing to receive comments regarding certification of certain delinquent
taxes.

Mayor Brown opened the Public Hearing.
Director Brewer asked if the lots were empty or do they have a house on them.

Public Works Director Tyler Richards said there were both empty lots and lots with houses on
them.

David Peavy asked if there were a time limit for the lien to be paid.

Mayor Brown said the lien would have to be paid before the property taxes.

A citizen spoke about her property on Prospect Street.

No one else came forward.

Mayor Brown closed the Public Hearing.
Resolution No. 2023-97 certified the amount to be put on tax books as delinquent and
collected accordingly. (PWD) Public Works Director Tyler Richards

After a brief discussion, the motion to adopt the resolution made by Director Hart, Seconded by

Assistant Mayor Roberts.

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Brewer, Director
Jewell, and Director Hart.

The motion carried 6-0 and the Mayor declared the resolution adopted.



5. Ordinance No. 34-2023 accepted the dedication of street right-of-way and public facilities
improvements within Arrowhead Estates Subdivision, streets named Redstone Drive,
Spearhead Lane, and Folsom Way, (Ward 6) (PWD) Public Works Director Tyler Richards

After a brief discussion, the motion to suspend the rules and place the ordinance on its first reading
in abbreviated form made by Assistant Mayor Roberts, Seconded by Director Harris.

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Brewer, Director
Jewell, and Director Hart.

The motion carried 6-0 and the ordinance was read the first time in abbreviated form.

Motion to suspend the rules and place the ordinance on its second reading in abbreviated form
made by Director Brewer, Seconded by Assistant Mayor Roberts.

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Brewer, and
Director Hart.

Voting Nay: Director Jewell.
The motion carried 5-1 and the ordinance was read the second time in abbreviated form.

Motion to suspend the rules and place the ordinance on its third and final reading in abbreviated
form made by Assistant Mayor Roberts, Seconded by Director Harris.

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Brewer, and
Director Hart.

Voting Nay: Director Jewell.

The motion carried 5-1 and the ordinance was read the third time in abbreviated form.
Motion to adopt the ordinance made by Director Hart, Seconded by Assistant Mayor Roberts.
Mayor Brown asked if anyone would like to speak for or against this ordinance.

No one came forward.

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Brewer, Director
Jewell, and Director Hart.

The motion carried 6-0 and the Mayor declared the ordinance adopted.

6. Ordinance No. 35-2023 accepted the dedication of street right-of-way and public facilities
improvements within Deer Meadows Subdivision, streets named Northern Red Oak Trail,
River Birch Way, and Southern Magnolia Lane. (Ward 6) (PWD) Public Works Director Tyler
Richards

After a brief discussion, the motion to suspend the rules and place the ordinance on its first reading
in abbreviated form made by Assistant Mayor Roberts, Seconded by Director Brewer.

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Brewer, Director
Jewell, and Director Hart.

The motion carried 6-0 and the ordinance was read the first time in abbreviated form.



Motion to suspend the rules and place the ordinance on its second reading in abbreviated form
made by Director Brewer, Seconded by Director Hart.

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Brewer, and
Director Hart.

Voting Nay: Director Jewell.
The motion carried 5-1 and the ordinance was read the second time in abbreviated form.

Motion to suspend the rules and place the ordinance on its third and final reading in abbreviated
form made by Assistant Mayor Roberts, Seconded by Director Hart.

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Brewer, and
Director Hart.

Voting Nay: Director Jewell.

The motion carried 5-1 and the ordinance was read the third time in abbreviated form.
Motion to adopt the ordinance made by Director Hart, Seconded by Assistant Mayor Roberts.
Mayor Brown asked if anyone would like to speak for or against this ordinance.

No one came forward.

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Brewer, Director
Jewell, and Director Hart.

The motion carried 6-0 and the Mayor declared the ordinance adopted.

7. Ordinance No. 36-2023 accepted the dedication of street right-of-way and public facilities
improvements within Griffin Place Subdivision, street named Brynlee Circle. (Ward 5)
(PWD) Public Works Director Tyler Richards

After a brief discussion, the motion to suspend the rules and place the ordinance on its first reading
in abbreviated form made by Assistant Mayor Roberts, Seconded by Director Hart.

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Brewer, Director
Jewell, and Director Hart.

The motion carried 6-0 and the ordinance was read the first time in abbreviated form.

Motion to suspend the rules and place the ordinance on its second reading in abbreviated form
made by Director Brewer, Seconded by Director Hart.

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Brewer, and
Director Hart.

Voting Nay: Director Jewell.
The motion carried 5-1 and the ordinance was read the second time in abbreviated form.

Motion to suspend the rules and place the ordinance on its third and final reading in abbreviated
form made by Assistant Mayor Roberts, Seconded by Director Harris.



Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Brewer, and
Director Hart.

Voting Nay: Director Jewell.

The motion carried 5-1 and the ordinance was read the third time in abbreviated form.
Motion to adopt the ordinance made by Director Hart, Seconded by Assistant Mayor Roberts.
Mayor Brown asked if anyone would like to speak for or against this ordinance.

No one came forward.

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Brewer, Director
Jewell, and Director Hart.

The motion carried 6-0 and the Mayor declared the ordinance adopted.

8. Ordinance No. 37-2023 accepted the dedication of street right-of-way and public facilities
improvements within Estates at Magee Farm Subdivision, street named Paisley Circle. (Ward
3) (PWD) Public Works Director Tyler Richards

After a brief discussion, the motion to suspend the rules and place the ordinance on its first reading
in abbreviated form made by Assistant Mayor Roberts, Seconded by Director Hart.

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Brewer, Director
Jewell, and Director Hart.

The motion carried 6-0 and the ordinance was read the first time in abbreviated form.

Motion to suspend the rules and place the ordinance on its second reading in abbreviated form
made by Director Brewer, Seconded by Director Harris.

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Brewer, and
Director Hart.

Voting Nay: Director Jewell.
The motion carried 5-1 and the ordinance was read the second time in abbreviated form.

Motion to suspend the rules and place the ordinance on its third and final reading in abbreviated
form made by Assistant Mayor Roberts, Seconded by Director Hart.

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Brewer, and
Director Hart.

Voting Nay: Director Jewell.

The motion carried 5-1 and the ordinance was read the third time in abbreviated form.
Motion to adopt the ordinance made by Director Hart, Seconded by Assistant Mayor Roberts.
Mayor Brown asked if anyone would like to speak for or against this ordinance.

No one came forward.

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Brewer, Director
Jewell, and Director Hart.



The motion carried 6-0 and the Mayor declared the ordinance adopted.

9. Ordinance No. 38-2023 accepted the dedication of street right-of-way and public facilities
improvements within Oak Hollow Subdivision, streets named Oak Hollow Lane and Acorn
Circle. (Ward 6) (PWD) Public Works Director Tyler Richards

After a brief discussion, the motion to suspend the rules and place the ordinance on its first reading
in abbreviated form made by Assistant Mayor Roberts, Seconded by Director Harris.

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Brewer, Director
Jewell, and Director Hart.

The motion carried 6-0 and the ordinance was read the first time in abbreviated form.

Motion to suspend the rules and place the ordinance on its second reading in abbreviated form
made by Director Hart, Seconded by Director Brewer.

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Brewer, and
Director Hart.

Voting Nay: Director Jewell.
The motion carried 5-1 and the ordinance was read the second time in abbreviated form.

Motion to suspend the rules and place the ordinance on its third and final reading in abbreviated
form made by Director Brewer, Seconded by Assistant Mayor Roberts.

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Brewer, and
Director Hart.

Voting Nay: Director Jewell.

The motion carried 5-1 and the ordinance was read the third time in abbreviated form.
Motion to adopt the ordinance made by Director Hart, Seconded by Director Brewer.
Mayor Brown asked if anyone would like to speak for or against this ordinance.

No one came forward.

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Brewer, Director
Jewell, and Director Hart.

The motion carried 6-0 and the Mayor declared the ordinance adopted.

NON-ACTION ITEMS

10. Adopt an Ordinance to amend Chapter 6. Aviation of the City of Texarkana, Arkansas, Code
of Ordinances. (AIRPORT) Airport Director Paul Mehrlich

Airport Director Paul Mehrlich gave a brief description of what needed to be done to update the
rules and regulations for the Airport.

Mayor Brown said this item would be placed on the Action Item list for the November 20, 2023,
meeting.



BOARD OF DIRECTORS' COMMENTARY

Director Brewer wanted to thank LifeNet for a job well done and for accommodating him as he
toured the facility and observed the operations.

Director Harris referred to several concrete jobs he requested to be done in his Ward and wondered
when they were going to be done.

EXECUTIVE SESSION

Director Hart asked for an Executive Session. The Board of Directors entered Executive Session
at 6:58 PM.

The Mayor reconvened the meeting at 7:08 PM, and no action was taken.
NEXT MEETING DATE: Monday, November 20, 2023
ADJOURN

Motion to adjourn made by Director Hart, Seconded by Assistant Mayor Roberts.

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Brewer, Director
Jewell, and Director Hart.

The motion carried 6-0 and the meeting adjourned at 7:09 PM.

APPROVED this the 20" day of November 2023.

Allen L. Brown, Mayor

Heather Soyars, City Clerk



CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

AGENDA TITLE:

Adopt a Resolution to reschedule the December 4, 2023 Board of
Directors meeting. (ADMIN)

AGENDA DATE: November 20, 2023

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance[] ResolutionXI Other[]:

DEPARTMENT: City Clerk

PREPARED BY: Heather Soyars

REQUEST: Reschedule December 4™ Board meeting due to the Christmas Parade.
EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A

SUMMARY': Reschedule December 4" Board meeting due to the Christmas Parade.

EXPENSE REQUIRED:

N/A

AMOUNT BUDGETED: N/A
APPROPRIATION N/A
REQUIRED:

RECOMMENDED

ACTION:

EXHIBITS: Resolution



RESOLUTION NO.

WHEREAS, the Christmas Parade will conflict with the December 4, 2023,
scheduled Board of Directors meetings during 2023; and

WHEREAS, the December 4, 2023, meeting should be rescheduled to avoid this
conflict;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the
City of Texarkana, Arkansas, the meeting scheduled for December 4, 2023, is hereby
rescheduled to .....

PASSED AND APPROVED this 20" day of November 2023.

Allen L. Brown, Mayor
ATTEST:

Heather Soyars, City Clerk

APPROVED:

Joshua L. Potter, City Attorney



CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

AGENDA TITLE:

Adopt an Ordinance to amend Chapter 6. Aviation of the City of
Texarkana, Arkansas, Code of Ordinances. (AIRPORT) Airport
Director Paul Mehrlich

AGENDA DATE: November 20, 2023

ITEM TYPE: OrdinanceX Resolution[] Other[]:

DEPARTMENT: Airport

PREPARED BY: Paul Mehrlich, Airport Director

REQUEST: Approve the Airport Rules and Regulations. Strike Chapter 6 —
Aviation Article I11 from the City of Texarkana, Arkansas, Code of
Ordinances.

EMERGENCY CLAUSE:

SUMMARY: Airport Rules and Regulations Update.

EXPENSE REQUIRED: $0

AMOUNT BUDGETED: $0

APPROPRIATION 0

REQUIRED:

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

EXHIBITS:

Ordinance, Briefing, and Airport Rules and Regulations



ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING AND
SUPPLEMENTING CHAPTER 6, ARTICLE IllI
OF THE CITY OF TEXARKANA, ARKANSAS,
CODE OF ORDINANCES RELATING TO THE
TEXARKANA AIRPORT AND AIRPORT
AUTHORITY; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES

WHEREAS, in accordance with applicable statute, the Texarkana Airport and
Texarkana Airport Authority is jointly operated by the cities of Texarkana, Arkansas, and
Texarkana, Texas; and

WHEREAS, in order to provide for certain updates to the ordinances of both
cities as relates to the Airport and the Airport Authority, it is necessary to amend and
supplement Chapter 6, Section 32, and Article Ill, of the City of Texarkana, Arkansas
Code of Ordinances (“Code”); and

WHEREAS, the amendments and supplements contained herein are likewise
being presented for adoption by the City Council of Texarkana, Texas;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the
City of Texarkana, Arkansas, that the Code is hereby edited, amended, and supplemented

as follows:

Section 1: Acrticle 111 shall be struck from city code.

Section 2: Section 6-32 is deleted and replaced with the following:

Sec. 6-32. — Rules; regulation; bylaws

The authority may propose such bylaws and rules governing its functions in the
operation of the airport as it deems best, provided however, that said rules and
bylaws shall not be in conflict with the constitution and statutes of the State of
Arkansas and the State of Texas or the ordinances of the City of Texarkana,
Arkansas, and the City of Texarkana, Texas. The proposed bylaws and rules must



be approved by both the governing bodies of Texarkana, Arkansas, and
Texarkana, Texas, before the same shall be effective and said governing bodies by
joint action may amend, alter, or repeal any bylaw, rule, or regulation. Copies of
which shall be kept on file in the offices of the city clerk and the airport director.
Violation of such rules and regulations shall constitute a misdemeanor.

Section 3: The Rules and Regulations of the Texarkana Regional Airport Authority,
as prepared by the Airport Executive Director, are hereby adopted, and approved.

Section 4: This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage
and approval.

PASSED AND APPROVED this 20" day of November 2023.

Allen L. Brown, Mayor
ATTEST:

Heather Soyars, City Clerk

APPROVED:

Joshua L. Potter, City Attorney



Updates?History of Brie?ing:

Current airport rules and regulations are codified under Chapter 6 Article Ill or the Texarkana AR city
code of ordinances. It has not been updated since 1961 and as a result had many items that needed to
be updated in a post 9/11 world. Airport had a consultant AMCG assist in updating Rules and
Regulations. Both Cities must approve the new rules and regulations per city code. Both cities council
have had opportunity to review and comment. Requesting that Article Ill be struck from city code, and
Chapter 6-32 language be updated to the following:

The authority may propose such bylaws and rules governing its functions in the operation of the
airport as it deems best, provided however, that said rules and bylaws shall not be in conflict with the
constitution and statutes of the State of Arkansas and the State of Texas or the ordinances of the City
of Texarkana, Arkansas, and the City of Texarkana, Texas. The proposed bylaws and rules must be
approved by both the governing bodies of Texarkana, Arkansas and Texarkana, Texas, before the
same shall be effective and said governing bodies by joint action may amend, alter or repeal any
bylaw, rule or regulation. Copies of which shall be kept on file in the offices of the city clerk and the
airport director. Violation of such rules and regulations shall constitute a misdemeanor.

Executive Summary and Background Information:
Approve the Airport Rules and Regulations. Strike Chapter 6 — Aviation Article IlI- Rules and Regulations.
Potential Options:

e  Approve

e Deny

Fiscal Implications:

S0

Staff Recommendation:

Staff recommends for approval.

Advisory Board/Committee Review:

Board/Committee Recommendation:
NA
Advisory Board/Committee Meeting Date and Minutes:

NA



ﬁ
201 Aarport Drive

TEXA RKANA Texarkana, Arkansas 71854

REGIONAL AIRPORT (870) 774-2171

Rules and Regulations

Texarkana Regional Airport Authority

Texarkana Regional Airport (TXK)

October 4, 2023



o

TEXARKANA

TABLE OF CONTENTS

-F]T r T -
I' I RDDLC IDh '-Fll-'-'Fl!-'-'l!-‘-FF!!-'JF!-"-F!!-'-FFl!-'-'l!-'-'!ll-'-'Fl-"-'l!-'-FFll-'-'!l-"-'l!-'-FFl!-'-'l!-'-'!ll-'-'!!-"-'l“i!l"ill-'-'!l"JF"'-’!“!F!"JF"'-’!I 1

L1
1.2
1.3
1.4.
L5
1.6,

L7

e
Purpﬂ&i- (AR PRI ERILER RN RN PRSI LRl RNt E RN RN RN IERT IRl RRd LRI ER TR NI E R IR LR RN ERR RNy II

PMUOD General ProviSiONS.. . eeiimissssssimmsssssssmsssssssssssssssssssssssessssnsssnssssssssnsssssassnssssssssssnss §
PMCD Definitions and ACTrORYIS ...veiiiieniesmsmsssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssesssesss 4 1
Airport Sponsor, Operator, and Governing Body .....iiiiisssisiisnisnississimssisssisssessiea 1
ARIROFIEY Of HRE DUFECIUIF coaneiiireeiseississssssssisssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnssssssssssssnasssnssssnsssnssnssnns §

]
E’T.ff'ir{- Emf”r S LD E R L LR LIS Ll L LR R LR LI LSl LR LR LRIl IR LR Ll Ll QLR LRl Ll !f

P{,"ﬂf’}’fﬂr L“’Iﬂfﬁffﬂﬂ EER A LRSI PR RS RSt R R LR R PR LRIt Rt RIS RS I R IRl R tER IR R IE

El
2' GEh ER.IIIH.L AL LR LIRS L LR LIS LR LI R LR LR LRI L LR Ll Lt Ll R LI LRl L Ll L LR LR Ll L IR LI LR Lyl ) 13

2.1
2.2,
2.3
2.4.
2.5
2.6,
2.7,
2.8
2.9
2,10,
2.11.
2,12,
2,13,
2.14.
2.15.
2,16,
217
2.18.
2,19,
2.20.
2.21,
2,22,
2.23.

fabd

3.1
3.2
3.3.
3.4.
3.5
3.6,
3.7
3.8.
3.9,
3.10.
3. 11,
312,
3.13.
3.14.
3.15.
3. 16.

Access To, Entry Upon, or Use of the ATrport...smssssssssssssssssssssssssesssenss 1.3
Restricted Areas, Sterile Areas, and Secured Identification Display Areas (SIDA)...........13
ATrport Security Badge v enscssnissenssssnissssssssnisssisssssssssmsssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssss o
COMMECIA] ACTHVITICS ouvnsiinsinssseessirisssesssissnssssssssssssssssssssssssssnssnssssssssnssssssssnsnssosssssssssssssnannnenss 19
ACCTHEHES v covvrrissssrsnssssssrsssissssssassssssrnsssssssrnasssssansssssssasrssssssnssasssssassssssassansesssnnasssssssassassssneass § 4
First Amendment ACHVIHES ccccnisimaisnssissnssmsimsssissmmssssssssssmssisassssassnsssssisssssssnssssssssssansass 1 4
AAVCFHISCIMICIIES ccvviiiiiissnsiniiisssssisisnsssssisssssissssnssssissssssssssssssnssnssssssssssssssssssnsnsssssssssnsssssnsssnsssssnns 3
Abandoned or Lost PROPETTY uieiiseiisinimssiisissssisssisssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssesssvessvenss 4 3
Use of Roadways and WalkiwWays......smimessissmmssissssssssssssssssssssssssssssassssssssssssasss 3
ARTIGIS covsiieeiiinssiisniinssssssiisssssssssmmssssssssssssssssssssssssssss sosssssssssnnssesssssnsssssssnnsnsesssnnssssssssnssnnsssssnns d O
Weapons and EXplOSIVES .uuiiueiiieinissmissmissiismssmsssisssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnsssissssssssssssssnessveass § 0
AICONMOIIC BEVEPADES uvrsrrssirisirissiissiississsssssssssssssssssssssssssssassssssssssssrsssssssssssssasssssssssessavesavenns 0
USe 0f PUBIIC AFPAS covvivinririnisssnisssiissiissssimssssssssmsssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssrsssssssssssssss § 0
Trash and RecyCliNg .. ssnsssssssssnasssssssssassesss 0
Fire and Flammable Materials.....consmsisssssmssisssssisssisssssssisssssssssssssssssssssass 7
HAZAPAOUS MOEETIAIS oeeerseenieieiiiieninsrssssesssresssssssssssssssssssssssnsssassssensssasssssnnsssssssssnssssansssnssssnnns B
Environmental (Hazardous Materials) Clean Up ....uvesiinsssssssssssssssssssnees A 8
PUINEING .ouviaisiisissssninsssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnsssssssssssssnsssssasssssssassssasssassnsssssnassssssssssssnssssssssssss § 9
Emergency CondITIONS . ecisisnissesssssnissssssssnisssissssssssssmssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssesss | 9
I P Y ).

Sk}.dipEfParﬂilfiurf Jumpf,'rg (T EE R A PR IR RS E R P R LR R R R L R L R R LR RN R RS LR S RN PP RS LR LR SRR LYl Eﬂ

AI RC“""‘-F I "fFI"#I“'#l!-'-'Fl!-'-'l1-'-'!l!-'-'l!-!-'fl1-'-'Fl!-'-'l!-'f-'l!-'-'l!-!-'-'l1-'-'FI!-'-'I!-!-"FI1-"'ll!-'-'l!-'f!l!-"'l!-!-'fl1-"'!l""l!-'-'fl"fl“'-’l"f!l"fl"f'll]

Statutes and OrdiRances.... s sssssasesssssssssssssssssssssssnss 2 1
Based Arcraft REgISIFQIION. ..vvisisisiissmisssissmissssssssisssisssmssssssssssssssssssssssssassrsssrsssssssssssssssss 24
B T 1 . |
Disabled and Abandoned ATFCPASE uuiveeiiioiiiinisiniiiisiiisiissiisssisssisssssessssrsssssssssssssisssssesssesss .0
ATFPOrt HOUEFS Of OPEPAIION covvseiiasissssssissssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnssssmsss snsssssansssssssnsnsssns S
Accidents and INCEAERES ..coviieiieiniismisnsmmssssissnsmssmsismmmsmsas s s srssssssns 44
Prohibiting Use 0f the ATFPOrT . ieeniisississssssssssssssssssisssssssmssssssssssssssssssesss 3.3

:—r -
'!EH"I"g!'fF!l‘ffll"f!ll-'fl!'f!l!-"!!ll"fll"fFl!"f!!Tf!ll"f!ll-'fl!'f!l!‘"’!!‘!‘ffll"fFl!"fl!T‘FFll""!l‘l"fl!'f!l!-"'!!-'f!ll"f!l!"fl!"f!l!"f!?‘#!l 21;

v L
ﬂf!clﬂgllI‘+'III'++'Ill"l"lllI"I"IlI"l"lllI"l"IlI‘++'III+'IIII'+'III'+'F'Ill"l"lll'l"l"llI‘+‘IIII'+'III'++‘Ill‘+‘|lll‘+‘lll‘+‘llll"l"lll"l"l"llI"l"lllI"l"IlI"l‘f‘Ill‘+‘|ll‘l‘+‘lll‘+‘llll+|ll++ll 23

ERGINE ODPEFUIION rrernrerssiicssinissssssssanssssssssssissssssssmissssnssssssssssssssssssssssstssssssnsssssssssnnssssssssnsssseass S
Parking and SIOTHEE.....ucrienersmonisssmimssiisssiseniserssssntisesiserssssnssesstronsssonsvosstsrsissassossinseninonssne S
ATPEPALT SECUFIIY covviverisriisiissinisiiissiissiississssssssssssssssssssssssisssisssssisssrssssssssssss sasssssssssessanenssenns 29
ATFCPAST OPCPAIIDIHS.covviiiariissirnssnssssisssssssssisssssssssssssssssssssssesssssssssessssssisssssssssssssnnsssssnssssssnnsnssans S8
Taxiing and Towing OPerations ......emeisesirossssssisomisosssssssassrassasssssssssssssssssersssssassrassnsssrones &0
Rotorcraft QP er@iions. . sssmissssssmissssisssrmsssiasssmmssmmssssmssmissmss e 20

Rules and Regulations i
Texarkana Regional Aarport Authority, Texarkana Regional Awrport (JOV04/,20.23)



o

TEXARKANA TABLE OF CONTENTS

LN

JA7. Balloon OpPeralionS.. . seiisiissimissmissssssisssisssssssssssisssissssssssssssssssssssnssnssssnsssssssssssssesss ol
3.18. Noise Abatement ProcedlFes ... secorissnssssrssssnsesssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnsssss 2 0
F A9 RESIFICIOH ACHVITIES wuvveeeirivnssrisseserenssssssssmssssssssnssssssssnnssssssssssssasssssasssssssnnsnsssssanssnsssssnsssnasssanns sl
Fo20 @O aueriieeeerisssisessssssssssssnssssssssssssssssssnsssssssssnnssssssmssssssssssssssssssenssnsssssssssssssssssssnssnssssssnsnsssssssnnnnssd

PASSENGER TERMINAL BUILDING....cccccisimmmmmmmmmssssnsssssassssssssssssnsssssssnsssssasssssssassssnasssssssssss S0

4.1, PUDIC AdUFESS SPSICIaraeieaeiiiaseiseiisssiissssisssssssisssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnssssstssass sansssnasssnsssnssnnsans S0
4.2,  Vending Machines (CoNCESSIONS) vurisssrssersserssssssssssssssrsssssssssnsssusssnssssssssssssssssssssarsnsssnsssrsses 20
4.3.  Smoking and VAPIRG ..t esssiassessssssasseass 20
God. LOCKS QR KEPS aavenerineiiieiiieiiississesssssssssssissssissesssssssesssssssssssssnsssnsssnsssasssasssssssssnnssnssassnssnnassnasss S0
E T o T Y. ,
4.6. Baggage Conveyor System and Unclaimed Baggage...oississimssssssissssssssssasmssss 2 9
4.70 AIPIIRE ODPCPAUOIS covvevivsssisasirrssessssisssssssssisssssssssisssssssssisssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnssssssssrsanssssssnsssnsans o 9
4.8,  Engine Operalion ...cmemmsmmsimesinsssissmmssisnsstinssssssisnssrsssmississestisessisissssisnssisssossssisnssssnd
4.9.  Ground Support EQUIPIIENT.....iiiisesisisisssissssmisssmssssmsssisssissssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssss 2 9
4.10. Music in Passenger Terminal BUildiRg ... ociiiciiiisnisssiisssiissssissssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssss 2.9

"EHICLES 30
.HII LIIE RSl LE R AL ER Rl E Rl Lt il Rttt sl ittt llEe i S ll el l el dd i lir aalli el i aldlleaatle il ll Rl Bzl syl s;

S0, STaiudes Qi OFdIIQECES. .. iiieiiiiiiiiiiciiiiissiisisiisansissnssssnsssrssssissssssnnsssssnsisnssssssnsssssssssssssssnsssen Il
3.2, Licensing and Permiil ... ouiveissessssssssssssiisssssssnssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnssasssassnssssssns 3

5" 31- Eq’uipl"ﬂnrl (LI LRSI RS LRI ER IR R R IR XL R T ERR IR Rttt E Rl a1ttt iRl T i RIZ R Il R TiRl IR X iRl RR 1l Ll s) l.liﬂ

"
jidi' w#rﬂ!!ﬂnslliiill‘iilli'iili'iiIii-i'llli‘iili‘iilli‘iill‘iiill‘iilli'iili'iiIli-i'illi'iili‘iilli‘iill‘iilll‘iilli'iili'iiIii-i'ili'iiili‘iilli‘iill‘iilifiilliiil 3ﬂ

5.5, AccesS Gaie SECHTII . et ssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssasssnssssnasssssssnssnnsnssd 4
5.6, Air Oper@tions AVl ..uveiiieenisenississssssssssssssssissssssssssssssssssssasssssssmsssusssissssssssssssssssssssarssassrasssasss 3 4
5.70  MOVEMERE AF@uuresariseiiieiiinniisiissessssssssrssssssssissssssssssesssssssssssssssssnsssssssiassssesssssssnsssnsassssssssssssanss 3 0
3.8. Accidents InvolviRg VERICIES crsseessessirsssrisssssssssssssssssssissssssssssssssssssnissssnssssnasssssssnsasssnss o3
3.9.  Cleaning and MaiRienaICe. s sasss s sssssmasssasssssassssasd o
5.10. Parking or STOPPIHE ...cvveiiieiimmmmmemsmimmimmmsmmmm i I
S0 1. Fees Qi PEPIILS oueeeeeeeieesiesssssssrsssissssssssssssssssssssnssssssssssssansssssssssssssssnsssnssnssssssssnsssnsssnnsssnsss d G

Cﬂnll}'lEHClAL \lll EHICLES -lll'l-illll-iilll-i-lll-l-i-lll-i-lll'l--l-ill-i-llll-iill-l--l-lll-iilll-i-lll-iilll-i-ill-l--l-lll-iilll-i-ill-l--l-lll-iilll-i-lll-iilll-iill-l-illas

6. 1. Statutes qid OPdINANECES .. ericrssesnissssisiisssssssissssssssssssssssssssssssassssssssass sesssssassssssssssssssss I
6.2.  Vehicle and Operator LICERSINE «vssmssssmsssssimssssssssnsssssssssmasssssssssassssas 3 o
0.3, Parking or SIOPPING ...t ssnsssssssssssssssssstsssssasssissssisnssnsssssnsssssssssssssss 33
6.4.  Operator Conduct and APPearaiiee . eieiiicsesesisssssssssssisssisssssssssisssssssssssssessssssassssssnssssssss J o
6.5. Passenger Loading or Unloding .....iiisvvsssinssssssssmmssssssssmisssssssmssssssssnsssssssssnasssssssssassssss 3 of
6.6. Commercial Velicle Operalions ... sisssmsissimsssssissssssissssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssas 3 0
6.7.  Commercial Vehicle Equipment and Condition..... . s 3

F -
513‘ EE‘& LSl IRl LR LIRSl A tE Rl IRl Rl IR Xl Rl il il llRddlisall R Xt il d il i sl lil R d i lleaat il e 0t ln 36

] 36
ﬁ‘ yﬂ- Cﬂﬂ!ﬂfﬂlrlrsi-i-illl-i-ill-i--iili-l--illi--i-ili-i-i-lli-i-illi--iili-i-illl--i-ill-i--i-lli-iilli-i-ili-i-illi-iill'i-iili-i-illl-i-ili-i-illi-iilli-i-ili-i-illiiiliiilliiill#iil#iill

I [‘h 'lltN I "f'"fFl"#-"'fl!-'-'Fl"f'1-'-'!l"f!"'f'1-'-'Fl!-'-"!-"!l!-'-'F"'f'1-'-'Fl""-‘"fl1-"'Fl"-"!-'f!l!-"'!!-"fl1-"'!l""‘!-"!l1-"'F"'#"'f!l"f""fls?

# =
?-i fl- Iﬂrrﬂdl‘crr{}nilll-iill-l--lill-i-llll-i-lll-l-i-lll-iilll-iill-l-illl-iill-l--lill-i-illl--i-lll-l-illl-iill-l-iill-iilll--i-ill-l-i-ill-i-illl--i-lll-l-illl-iill-l-iill-iilliiiliiill 3.“’

3. Construction or Alteration of IMpProvements ..snesmmsmssmsssssmsssssssssssssassasd 7
Tode Maintenance Of PrEMIISES . iseniisississmiissssssssmmssssssssmsssssssssssssesssssssssasssssssssssssssssssssssssssnss 3 7
T FIPE PPOVERIION c.vvniinsisssniinssssssisssnsssssisssssessssssssssssssss shssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnsnssssinassnsssssnssnnsssssnns IO
760, Heating EQUIDIMENT ....vevsvissiissrnissiismisssisssissssssssssssmsssnssssssssssssssssssssssrsassnassnssssnssssssassnsssnensrenns 0
To7e ATreraft HARBATS vivisiiissrissiiissiissiissisisssssessssmssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssavessronns S0
R R 1 | A L T OSSOSO |
9. Storage of Materials and EQUIPIENT......cvievsseisssiinsinsssmsinssssssssssssssssssssssssisssisssssssssssssssssssesssd 9
20, Compressed GaSES cmmmmssssssssssmmisssssssmsssssssssasssas s sssssssssssssssss S0

Rules and Regulations i1
Texarkana Regional Aarport Authority, Texarkana Regional Awrport (JOV04/,20.23)



o

TEXARKANA TABLE OF CONTENTS

10.

Td L. LUDPICAUNE (IS ciiisirinriissiissiiissiissiiscsssessssssssssssssstsnsssssssssssssssssssssssssssnassnssssnssssssssssssnnsssnsnns B
?‘F IE‘I Rig;!r r{f‘E"rr-]?‘!fll-l"!fl!‘fll!-f-!l!-l-f-lll-!fll!-ffl!-l-fll!-ffll-l--!ll!-!-fll!-f-!l!-!-flll-!fll'l-ffl!-l-fll!-f-!l!-!-f‘lll-'fll!-f-!l!-!-flll-fflll-fll!-!-fll!-ffl!-!--!ll #’ﬂ
?ll Ijl J;\rﬂﬂ'c‘ﬂ,,-r,,rer{-'iﬂf Ff}rf”g CI’H& NI RN LI ER YL E RS LE R L LRSI ER LRI RN RN LI I LRI LR IER LRI LR LL R #ﬂ

-‘ d T P]- F £l
.I:It .I.Illi ]ﬂ L EL[NG !ffl!l‘flll"fll‘!‘fll1""ll!-f'!ll'l'f'lll"fll‘!‘fll1""lll"fll‘!‘"ll1""ll‘!‘f"ll‘l‘flll"fll‘!""ll!T‘Flll‘ffll‘!‘"‘ll1""ll‘!‘f'lll"flll"fll‘!‘f‘ll44

S‘i Ii- Gengrﬂflli--iili-i-illl--i-ill-i--i-lli-l--illi--i-ilI'i-i-lli-i-illi--iili-i-illl--i-ill-i--i-lli-i-illi-i-ili-i-illi-iill'i-illi-i-illl-i-ill'i-illi-iilli-i-ili-i-illiiilliilliiill#iil#iill i :

8.2, Non-Commercial Self-Fueling (Jet and AVEUS) ... iiiiiiiniisiiiiisiiisssiasinisssissssssssssssssssssssass 38
S; -;l- J;\rill-}l -cr}"lﬂrerciﬂ! SEH.-FHEIEHE (-'wﬂgﬂhj LL LIS R LIS LI el S Ll LR LI IRl IRl LR iRl LR LI LR Ll -iﬂ
3{4} Fﬂﬂ!mer{-’fﬂ’! SEI,}:SP;-FE FﬂﬁffﬂgiillI'-I--illl'-l--lll-i--i-llI+-Illi--l--lll'i--i-lII+-Ill'i--i-llI--I--illl--l--lll-i--i-llI--I--Ill-i--i-lll--l--illl+-llli--i-lll-+-llli-+-lll-i--ill 53

APPENDIX A — PMCD GENERAL PROVISIONS...ovvrvrnnsnnississssmssssssssmsssssssssassssssssssssssss 33

-
Jd-ji Purpﬂhf (S LR LI ERS IR RS E RN I IR E R iR IR RS R LIRS IR RS LRIt E R IR LIRS IR AT iR IRt PR iR It R SRRl R Rt LER; 53

A-2.  Authority of Airport Sponsor and Governing Body ... 33
B e T F L T 1 . 1 1
SEAteMeEnt Of POLICY couvvvvvisiiisinsinieniissiisenssissssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssanassronns .3
NOR-DESCHIMUERUEIO N o seniiiiieiiissiesiniiissiessssssstesssssssssst st sssssssntensssssnssssssnnsssssssssnssnsesssssssssnnnenss 33
B F T L T . X
Compliance with Statutes, Ordinances, and AGreCMENnts . iiisiiissiisssissssssssssssssmsssissns 39
Conflicting Statutes, Ordinances, and AZreemEntS. . siieescssssesssssessssssssssssssssssssssns 34
Right 10 Self-ServiCe.uiiinniinriinrinnisiinesnissnisssmssssissssssssesssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssesss 34
ProRibited ACHIVITIES incsissssasssssssissssisssisssissssssssssssssssssssnsssasssssesssessasssssssssnnsssnasssassasssssssss 4
F T T £ T, T |

(5
L I LI R | L |
e fe PR

]
[N . T U SRR U SIS

Sﬂl‘lf! ﬂb! -r’-l‘l--l-illl-+-|ll-l--!-llI"I--Illl--l--llI!--F-Ill'+-lll'l--!-llI'-I--Fll!--l--lll-l--!-lll'-l--lll'l--!-lll--l--!lll-+-lll'l--!-llI--I--Ill!--l--lll-l--!llI--I--Ill-l--!-lll--l--!ll!--l--lll-l--!-lll--l--lll-l--!-lll--l--!ll -

Snbﬂrdiﬂﬂ;'iﬂ" CLE R R LR R LR L R R R LR e R R RN P R L LR RN LR R R R R L R RN LR PR R R R LR LRl R 55
Notices, Regquests for Approval, Applications, and Other Filings ... sssesssersssssssssssssenns 33

Wy b e By e

)
al
1'4 ”’E"f{j”’ E”f& L LR LER L LSRR L LR L LR R LIS IR L LER LR IR RN LI R IRl LR LRIl LR LIy LR Ly ) 1’5

lfﬂrfﬂﬂ {"F ﬂr E‘:relr‘prfﬂﬂ LRSI R L LR SR PO L R RS R R R R R R L P R L L R e R P L L RS PN P R R LR R L P R L E R L R AR P R L LR R L o 55
Possible Grounds for Rejecting Application, Variance, or EXeMPUion ... eeisensseinsenns 36

E 57
,tﬁ?r{-“?meﬂr R F N R RN I R F N N A NN F N R T F NN A FF T R R N R F N BN E T R F R R F P R R R R R R R RN F TR R N R R F TR R FF TR RN RN PR N R R FF R RO 1.’ "'r

SN N N N NN
=P

Iy
s

d‘zﬂ- fippeﬂiﬂlll'i'lli'iilll‘iilliiili'iiIii-i'ili'iilli‘iilll‘iili'iilll‘iill‘iilli'iiIli-i'ili'iilli‘iillii‘lli'iilll‘iill‘iilli'iilii‘iili‘iilli‘iill‘iilli‘iilifiilfiill 5?

A-21. Rights and Privileges ReServed . siisissssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnass 3 1
APPENDIX B — PMCD DEFINITIONS AND ACRONYMS ... iinisnnissssssssssssssssssssssssss 00

Bol.  DEfIRILIONS oeuvveeseresnrisaiiseiiisnisssissessssssssssssssssssssssssssssessssssssssssnssssnsssnsssssssssssssssssosssnssarssssnnsssnanss O0)

B-2.  Acronvms 67
- (v AL LRSI EE S LE RS L IER I ERLLIERSLIERRE IR IERSIERSSLERSIIERIIERSYLIERSLIIERS SRR ERYTERSSLIERSLIIERYIERSIIERSI LIRSS AT SR LIIER I IERSYLE R, r

Rules and Regulations i
Texarkana Regional Aarport Authority, Texarkana Regional Awrport (JOV04/,20.23)



TEXARKANA INTRODUCTION

1. INTRODUCTION

I.1. Purpose

The purpose of these Rules and Regulations is to protect the health, safety, interest, and general welfare of
the public and the Tenants and users of the Texarkana Regional Airport (Awmrport), and to prevent any
activities or actions which would negatively interfere with the safe, orderly, and efficient use of the Airport.

1.2, PMCD General Provisions

General Provisions, which are those provisions common to all Primary Management Compliance
Documents (PMCDs) are set forth in Appendix A of these Rules and Regulations and are incorporated
into these Rules and Regulations and all PMCDs by reference.

1.3 PMCD Definitions and Acronyms

The definitions and acronyms utilized throughout the PMCDs are set forth in Appendix B of these Rules
and Regulations, are capitalized whenever used in the PMCDs, and are incorporated into these Rules and
Regulations and all PMCDs by reference. Words that are not defined shall be construed consistent with
common meaning or as generally understood.

1.4. Airport Sponsor, Operator, and Governing Body

The Airport is owned and operated by Texarkana Regional Airport Authority (Authority) and governed
by the Board of Directors (Authority Board).

1.5.  Authority of the Director

The Authority Board has authorized the Executive Director (Director) to interpret, administer, and
enforce these Rules and Regulations and the PMCDs. During emergency situations, the Director 1s
empowered to 1ssue such directives, variances, and/or exemptions and to take such action that, within
Director’s discretion and judgement, are necessary or desirable to safeguard the safety, security, and
efficiency of the Airport and the public.

The Director shall be subject to the direction, authority, and control of the Authority Board and shall act
as their official representative pertaining to aviation and Airport matters for the Authority. The Director’s
powers and duties include. but are not limited to, the following:

# designate aircraft operating, parking, and other such areas necessary for the safe, secure, and
efficient operation of the Awport;

assign aircraft parking, Hangar, and tiedown spaces;

order unauthorized aircraft to leave the Airport; and

promulgate rules and regulations for the use, operation, and administration of the Airport.

Vv

"\l_-f'

1.6, Enforcement

In addition to enforcement authority designated to the Director, the enforcement of all federal, state, and
local statutes and ordinances pertaining to fire protection and Hazardous Materials (within its jurisdiction)
shall be administered by the Texarkana Regional Airport Rescue and Fire Department (Fire Department).
All other statutes and ordinances (within its jurisdiction) shall be enforced by the City of Texarkana,
Arkansas Police Department (Police Department) and Law Enforcement Officers.

Rules and Regulations 11
Texarkana Regional Airport Authority, Texarkana Regional Airport (10/04/2023)



II'@%M INTRODUCTION
Violation of these Rules and Regulations, the PMCDs, applicable federal, state, and local statutes and
ordinances, or directives issued by the Authority, Fire Department, or Law Enforcement Officers or
Jeopardizing the safety or security of persons and entities utilizing the Airport, or harassment or obstruction
of Adrport employees in their enforcement of these Rules may result in suspension, revocation, and/or
prohibition of access privileges, engaging in activities on Airport property, and use of the Airport. Violators
shall be subject to all legal, equitable, statutory, and common law rights and remedies available to the
Authority. Violators of these Rules and Regulations, the PMCDs, and all applicable federal, state, and local
statutes and ordinances may be prosecuted for trespass.

I.7. Penalty for Violation
Violations by Tenants and users of the Airport shall be considered as follows, which excludes the Authority,
Fire Department, or Law Enforcement Officers:

» committing an act that is prohibited or declared unlawful by ordinance or by rule or
regulations authorized by ordinance;

# Tfailure to perform an act that 1s required to be performed by ordinance or by rule or regulation
authorized by ordinance; or

» failure to perform an act if the failure is declared a violation by ordinance or by rule or
regulation authorized by ordinance.

Except as otherwise provided, a person or entity convicted of a violation of these Rules and Regulations, the
PMCDs, all apphicable federal, state, and local statutes and ordinances, or directives 1ssued may be 1ssued a
fine as provided in all applicable federal, state, and local statutes and ordinances, but not exceeding
$1,000.00 for the first offense or violation.

If the violation is continuous in respect to time, the fine for allowing the continuance shall not exceed
5500.00 for each day of unlawful continuance., If a violation is also a muisdemeanor under State law, the
penalty for the violation shall be as prescribed by State law for the State offense.

The imposition of a penalty does not prevent the Authority from revocation or suspension of a license,
permit, or Agreement,

Violations of these Rules and Regulations, the PMCDs, all applicable federal, state, and local statutes and
ordinances, or directives that are continuous with respect to time and a public nuisance may be abated by
injunctive or other equitable relief. The imposition of a penalty does not prevent the simultaneous granting
of equitable relief in appropriate cases,

Rules and Regulations 12
Texarkana Regional Airport Authority, Texarkana Regional Airport (10/04/2023)



TEXARKANA GENERAL

2. GENERAL

2L Access To, Entry Upon, or Use of the Airport

Access to or entry upon the Adrport shall be made only at locations designated by the Director. Any person
accessing or using the Airport shall be fully and completely responsible for their actions and all actions of any
person who is provided access to or use of the Airport, whether directly or indirectly, expressed, or implied.
All actions shall be in full and complete compliance with these Rules and Regulations and applicable PMCDs.

2.2, Restricted Areas, Sterile Areas, and Secured Identification Display Areas (S1DA)
Access to the Restricted Areas is limited to persons with a valid Airport Security Badge (Airport Badge),
under appropriate supervision or escort, or as otherwise approved by the Director,

Unescorted access or entry to Sterile Areas or certain parts thereof, is limited to persons who have been
screened by Transportation Security Administration (TSA) personnel and possess a valid boarding or gate
pass, possess a valid Aurport Badge with appropriate permissions, or be a person under appropriate
supervision and escort by a person with escort privileges.

The Secured Areas are the areas where air carrier aircraft operate, enplane, and deplane passengers and
sort and load baggage and any adjacent areas that are not separated by adequate security measures.

2.3 Airport Security Badge

Persons requiring unescorted access or entry to a Restricted Area or a Stenile Area (who do not have a
valid boarding or gate pass) shall complete and submit an Airport Security Badge Application to the
Authority. Prior to accessing or entering a Restricted Area, persons shall possess an approved Airport
Badge which authorizes such access.

Prior to obtaining an Airport Badge for employees of Operators, Lessees, or Sublessees, an Authorization
Signature Letter listing the person(s) authonzed to receive Airport Badge(s) shall be submitted to the
Authority. Prior to obtaining an approved Airport Badge. a person must successfully pass a Criminal
History Records Check and Security Threat Assessment in accordance with 49 CFR Part 1540-1544 and
applicable security directives.

Persons desiring or in possession of an approved Airport Badge shall complete all Authority training
programs and meet all related requirements (including payment of applicable fees).

Any person who allows unauthorized use of an Airport Badge or fails to pay any fine or charge may lose
access privileges,

No person shall make, possess, use, offer for sale, pass, or deliver any forged or falsely altered pass,
permit, identification card, sign, and/or other authorization purporting to be issued by or on behalf of the
Authority,

2.4. Security

The Police Department has the overall responsibility for security of the Awport. Operators, Lessees, or
Sublessees are responsible for the security of entity’s Leased Premises and shall comply with the
Authority’s security requirements and/or best practices. Security gates that provide access to the Air
Operations Area (AOA) shall remain closed, locked, and secured except when actually in use. The
Director may close or otherwise restrict access to any area of the Awport when safety or secunty
considerations dictate.

Rules and Regulations 13
Texarkana Regional Airport Authority, Texarkana Regional Awrport (10/04/2023)



TEXARKANA GENERAL
Tampering with, interfering with, or disabling the lock or closing mechanism, or breaching any other
security device 1s prohibited unless authorized by the Director. Persons who have been provided an access
code or device for access to a Restricted Area shall not, under any circumstances, divulge, duplicate, or

otherwise distribute or convey the code or device to any other person unless authorized in writing by the
Authority.

Unless under approved escort, no person shall follow another person into an Airport Restricted Area.
Each individual must use an approved Airport Badge to access the Airport through any restricted entry
point.

2.5, Commercial Activities

Any entity desiring to engage in or 1s actively engaging in a Commercial Aeronautical Activity at the
Aiarport shall comply with the Arport’s General Aviation Minimum Standards (Minimum Standards), as
developed and amended from time to time.

Based Aircraft shall not be used for Commercial Aeronautical Activities at the Airport unless expressly
authorized by an Agreement with the Authority. Based Aircraft may be used for the purpose of training or
increasing the flying proficiency of the Aircraft Owner or members of the Aircraft Owner’s Immediate
Family.

Any entity desiring to engage in any non-aeronautical Commercial activity (including photography or
filming) at the Awrport shall obtain written permission from the Authority prior to engaging in such
activity.,

2.6. Accidents

Any person involved in or witnessing an Accident resulting in injury, death, or damage to Property shall
immediately call “911" and notify the Authority. If reasonably able to do so, such person shall remain at
the scene and respond to the inquinies of (and provide the information requested by) the Authority,
Director, Police Department, Law Enforcement Officers, Fire Department, and/or investigative personnel.
Unauthorized entry to the AOA to gain access to an Accident scene is prohibited.

No person shall tamper with an Accident scene or fail to comply with any directive issued by the
Authority, Director, Police Department, Law Enforcement Officers, Fire Department, or any other
Agency having jurisdiction over the Accident scene.

27 First Amendment Activities

Conduct of or participation in solicitation, picketing, demonstrating, parading, marching, patrolling, sit-
ins, sit-downs, or other similar activities and/or assembling, carrying, distributing, or displaying
pamphlets, signs, placards, or other matenals 15 prohibited without prior written permission of the
Director.

All authorized activities listed above shall be conducted (a) in those areas identified by the Authority
without obstructing the use of the Airport by others; (b) in a peaceful and orderly manner; (c) without
physical harm, molestation, threat, or harassment of any person: (d) without obscemties, violence, breach
of the peace, or other unlawful conduct; (e) without hindrance to or interference with the proper, safe,
orderly, and efficient access to, and operation of the Airport and activities conducted thereon; and (f) in
strict conformance with any rules and regulations governing such activities on the Airport and the
direction and conditions prescribed in writing by the Director,

Rules and Regulations 14
Texarkana Regional Airport Authority, Texarkana Regional Awrport (10/04/2023)



TEXARKANA GENERAL
2.8. Advertisements

Advertisements, including notices, circulars, and/or handbills, may not be posted, displayed, or
distributed without the prior written permission of the Director. The posting of advertisements on

Authority physical property shall conform with established Authority policies and directives. The
Authority has the right to remove or relocate any such advertisement.

2.9 General Conduct

No person shall use or otherwise conduct themselves in any area of the Airport in any manner contrary to
the directions posted mn or for that area. Destroying, damaging, mjuring, defacing, disturbing, or
tampering with Property 1s prohibited. Any and all Property damaged or destroyed shall be replaced (or
replacement shall be paid for) by the person(s) responsible for such damage or destruction.

Smoking, vaping, or carrying lighted cigars, cigarettes, or pipes in any public use area of the Airport,
except in areas specifically designated by the Authority and posted as public smoking areas, 15 prohibited.

Starting, moving, using, or interfering with the safe operation of any aircraft, vehicle, or equipment
without the permission of the Owner or by specific direction of the Authority is prohibited. If requested
by the Authority or a Law Enforcement Officer, satisfactory evidence of the right to do so shall be
presented.

No person shall engage in behavior that is disruptive or creates a hazard or risk of injury, death, or
damage to Property.

The Airport shall not be used to camp or stay overnight unless approved in writing by the Director. The
Airport shall not be used for any improper, objectionable, or illegal purposes.

Leased Premises are expressly for the conduct of the Tenant’s activities. Persons without an Airport
Badge or under appropriate supervision or escort shall not make use of the Leased Premises without
permission of the Tenant or as otherwise approved by the Director,

2.10.  Abandoned or Lost Property

Property shall not be Abandoned at the Airport. Abandoned or Lost Property found in Public Areas shall
be reported or submitted to the Authority.

Abandoned or Lost Property unclaimed by its proper owner within 30 calendar days shall become the
property of the Authority to be disposed of at the discretion of the Authority.

Disposition of Abandoned or Lost Property to which the finder is not entitled to lawful possession shall
be disposed of at the sole discretion of the Authority in accordance with federal, state, and local statutes
and ordinances and its policies.

No provision in this Section shall be construed to deny the right of Lessees or Sublessees to maintain a

lost and found service for Abandoned or lost Property found on Leased Premises so long as the lost and
found service 15 consistent with federal, state, and local statutes and ordinances.

2.11.  Use of Roadways and Walkways

No person shall travel at the Airport other than on the roadways, walkways, or other areas provided or
designated for a specific type or class of traffic and no person shall occupy the roadways or walkways in
such a manner as to hinder or obstruct proper use.

Rules and Regulations 15
Texarkana Regional Airport Authority, Texarkana Regional Awrport (10/04/2023)



TEXARKANA GENERAL

212,  Animals

No person shall bring animals, except for service animals or animals used for law enforcement purposes
in Public Areas, unless destined for air transport and restrained by a leash, contamer, or crate. Domestic
pets may be at the Airport only if kept on a leash or inside a Lessee’s or Sublessee’s facilities, aircraft, or
vehicles.

No person, except authorized personnel by the Authority for the purposes of wildhife management shall
intentionally hunt, pursue, trap, catch, injure, or kill any animal at the Airport. No person shall feed or
perform any other act to encourage the congregation of animals on any portion of the Airport.

2.13. Weapons and Explosives

Weapons (including, but not limited to, firearms, tear gas, mace, pepper spray, or other similar devices,
materials, or substances) or explosives may only be possessed in accordance with applicable federal,
state, and local statutes and ordinances.

» No person shall carry a weapon inside the Passenger Terminal Building except in accordance
with State of Arkansas Statute A.C.A. § 5-73-306(14) for the sole purpose of checking an
unloaded, encased weapon for shipment purposes as baggage for lawful transport on an
alrcraft.

#  Weapons stored in locked containers (and not immediately accessible) for the purposes of
shipping for legal uses are permitted.

No person shall possess or 1igmite Class C explosives (e.g., fireworks, firecrackers, ete.) as defined in Part
1910 of the Occupational Safety and Health Administration with exception of explosives that may be
used by authorized personnel for purposes of wildlife management or during approved special events.

2.14.  Alcoholic Beverages

Alcoholic beverages may only be consumed in accordance with all applicable state and local statutes and
ordinances. The Authority reserves the right to exclude or expel any person who, in the judgment of a
Law Enforcement Officer, 15 mtoxicated or under the influence of alcoholic beverages or drugs. The
Authority reserves the right to restrict the consumption of alcoholic beverages at the Airport,

2.15.  Use of Public Areas

Marking or defacing the floors, walls, windows, ceilings, or any other surface is prohibited. Use of the
Public Area in any facility including the Passenger Terminal Building during Air Carrier service
interruptions for purposes of sleeping i heu of a hotel, motel, or other accommodations 1s prohibited
unless authorized by the Authority.

2.16. Trash and Recycling

Trash of any kind shall not be placed, discharged, or deposited at the Airport except in properly designated
trash receptacles.

Exterior trash receptacles and recycling containers shall be equipped with securely fastened lids. Trash
and recyclable materials shall not be brought to or burned on Airport property. Trash receptacles and
recycling containers shall be kept clean and emptied on a regular basis to prevent overflowing.

Rules and Regulations 16
Texarkana Regional Airport Authority, Texarkana Regional Awrport (10/04/2023)



TEXARKANA GENERAL
2.17.  Fire and Flammable Materials

Tenants and users shall comply with the Arkansas Fire Protection Code and all fire codes, regulations, or
directives 1ssued by the Fire Department and/or the Authonty,

In no event shall smoking, vaping, or carrving lighted cigars, cigarettes, or pipes occur within 50 feet of
any aircraft, Refueling Vehicle, or fuel storage facility. Open flames (i.e.. candles, fixtures, or fires) are
prohibited without the prior written pernussion of the Authority and the Fire Department.

# This excludes open flames utilized by a Tenant in the performance of Aircraft Maintenance.
#  With the prior written permission of the Authority and the Fire Department, Aircraft Rescue
and Fire Fighting (ARFF) personnel may engage in training exercises which require open

flames.

Uncontrolled fires (regardless of size or whether the fire has been extinguished) shall be reported
immediately to *“9117. No person shall tamper with any fire extinguisher or related equipment or use the
same for any purpose other than fire prevention or firefighting.

# Such equipment may be inspected by the Fire Department and/or Authority at any time and
shall be fully operational and inspected annually.
e A tag showing the date of the last inspection by a certified vendor (and who performed
the inspection) shall be attached to each unit and records, acceptable to fire underwriters,
shall be kept documenting the status of each unit.

No person shall block or modify any seli-closing fire door or do anything which would interfere or
prevent closing in the event of a fire. Flammable materials shall only be used or stored in accordance with
the Arkansas Fire Protection Code and in comphance with applicable federal, state, and local statutes and
ordinances.

The use of flammable, volatile liquids having a flash point of less than 100 degrees Fahrenheit is
prohibited unless such operations are conducted in open air or in a room specifically approved for the
purpose for which the hiquid 1s being used. The room must be properly fireproofed and equipped with
appropriate and readily accessible fire-extinguishing apparatus.

2.18.  Hazardous Materials

No person shall store, keep, handle, use, dispense, discharge, or transport any Hazardous Materials or
Hazardous Materials container in contravention of any federal, state, and local statutes and ordinances.
Proper permits must be obtained from the Agency having jurisdiction over such materials, copies must be
maintained on file for review by the Authority, and prior notification must be given to the Authority.

If any person or entity stores, uses, or dispenses anv Hazardous Materials in such a wayv as to be subject to
any of the requirements under the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) Emergency Planning and
Community Right-to-Know Act (EPCRA) such entity shall be responsible for any reporting obligations
under EPCRA. The Authority will not be responsible for compliance with any EPCRA requirements,
except to the extent the Authority stores, uses, or transports Hazardous Materials.

Rules and Regulations 17
Texarkana Regional Airport Authority, Texarkana Regional Awrport (10/04/2023)



"‘%M GENERAL

# If the storage of Hazardous Material is approved, such material must be placed in suitable
containers designed specifically for storage of Hazardous Materials with self-closing, tight-
fitting, leak-proof lids which are properly secured.

o Safety Data Sheets (SDS) for all Hazardous Materials shall be maintained by the Tenant
on-site s0 as to be readily available to emergency responders in the event of an
emergency and for review, at any time, by the Authority and the Fire Department.

Hazardous Materials shall not be stored in close proximity to operating aircraft, vehicles,

equipment, or sources of heat nor be stored in excess of amounts needed as current inventory.

All Hazardous Matenal shall be kept enclosed in a clearly marked and properly labeled

container, the type and design of which must meet the approval of the Fire Department.

e Secondary containment is required for Hazardous Materials being stored in tanks, drums,
or other similar storage receptacles.

L

e Fuels or deicing fluids in containers greater than 55 gallons shall not be stored without
providing prior notification and a copy of a Spill Prevention, Control, and
Countermeasure Plan (SPCC Plan) to the Authority and the Fire Department.

Hazardous Materials and Hazardous Materials containers shall be disposed of in a manner consistent with
the Arkansas Fire Protection Code and in full compliance with these Rules and Regulations, the
Authority’s Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP), the Authority’s directives, and federal,
state, and local statutes and ordinances.

» Used or spent engine oil shall be disposed of only at waste o1l stations or approved disposal
locations. No person shall bring used or spent engine oil onto the Airport.

No Hazardous Materials shall be disposed of on the ground or into the air during aircraft preflight
inspections. Any release of Hazardous Materials shall comply with this Section of these Rules and
Regulations and federal, state, and local statutes and ordinances,

2.19.  Environmental (Hazardous Materials) Clean Up

The party responsible for an environmental incident (to include the overflowing or spilling of fuel. oil,
lubricants, grease, dope, paint, varnish, lacquer, solvent, acid, or other Hazardous Materials) is
responsible for: the immediate mitigation and cleanup of the overflow or spill, proper disposal of the
substance(s) and used cleanup materials, immediate notification of the Fire Department and the Authority,
and assumption of the risk and expense of cleanup and mitigation efforts.

In the event the Authority determines the responsible party is unavailable, unable, or unwilling to take the
appropriate action to mitigate the adverse environmental incident in a timely manner (at the responsible
party’s risk, cost, and expense), the Authority may act as necessary to control and/or clean up the site at
the risk, cost, and expense of the responsible party, without liability to the Authority.

Hazardous Materials Overflow or Spills — In the event a Hazardous Materials overflow or spill occurs,
regardless of the amount of the overflow or spill, the responsible party shall take appropnate action to
contain the overtlow or spill, notify the Fire Department and other appropriate Agencies and clean up,
mitigate, and remediate the site. The use of deicing fluids 1s exempt when such use complies with federal,
state, and local statutes and ordinances pertaining to the deicing of aircraft and/or paved surfaces (e.g.,
Runways, Taxiways, Taxilanes, or Ramp).

The following procedures shall be followed in the event of a Hazardous Matenals overflow or spill unless
otherwise required under an approved SPCC Plan or instructed by the Authority or the Fire Department.

Rules and Regulations 18
Texarkana Regional Airport Authority, Texarkana Regional Awrport (10/04/2023)



TEXARKANA GENERAL

Minor Hazardous Materials Overflow or Spills are defined as overflows or spills of less than five
gallons which do not compromise public safety. The responsible party shall:

Stop the source of the spill immediately.

Contain the spill with appropriate absorbent material(s).

Block all stormwater drains in the immediate area to prevent the spill from flowing into the
drain(s).

» Contact the Authority.

A G

Major Hazardous Materials Overflow or Spills are defined as overflows or spills in excess of five
gallons (or which compromises public safety), but less than 25 gallons or any spill causing an immediate
threat to public safety. In addition to following all the procedures in the Minor Hazardous Materials
Overflow or Spill response, the responsible party shall:

» Determine the threat to the immediate public and make any arrangements to secure the safety
of the immediate public (e.g., evacuation).

# Assess the damage to land and/or ground water in conjunction with the Authority.

# Provide a written summary of the spill to the Authority within 24 hours of the spill.

Serious Hazardous Materials Overflow or Spills are defined as overflows or spills in excess of 25
gallons or which may pose a serious threat to the public safety. In addition to following all the procedures
in the Minor and Major Hazardous Materials Overflow or Spill response, the responsible party shall:

» Provide a detailed written summary of the spill to the Authority within five business days of
the spill which shall also identify the measures which the responsible party will take to
climinate the potential for such a spill in the future.

Entities with fueling capability or responsibility for maintenance of fuel systems shall have on hand
sufficient: (a) containment booms to form a barrier around the spill and (b) sufficient absorbent
material(s), booms, blankets, pads, pillows, and other clean-up materials available to pick up the spilled
product and store it in a sealed container(s) until proper disposal can be made. Salvage drum(s) shall be
approved by the Department of Transportation (DOT) (DOT-E-10102).

2.20. Painting

Doping, painting, or paint stripping shall only be performed in those facilities specifically approved for
such activities and in accordance with the Arkansas Fire Protection Code and in full compliance with the
Authority’s SWPPP, the SPCC Plan, the Authority’s directives, and applicable federal, state, and local
statutes and ordinances.

2.21.  Emergency Conditions

Emergency conditions shall not mitigate or cancel these Rules and Regulations. Emergency directives or
procedures may be issued at the discretion of the Director.

2.22.  Special Events

Any person or entity desiring to conduct a Special Event at the Airport shall complete and submit the
Special Event Permut Application to the Authority along with prnior payment of all applicable fees paid to
the Authority and any other Agency having jurisdiction. The entity shall receive a signed and approved
Special Event Permit from the Authority prior to conducting the Special Event. Special event attendees
shall remain clear of Airport operations, aircraft, active Taxiways, Runways, and other areas designated
by the Director.

Rules and Regulations 19
Texarkana Regional Airport Authority, Texarkana Regional Awrport (10/04/2023)



"‘%M GENERAL
2.23.  Skydive/Parachute Jumping

Unless conducted by an approved Skydiving Operator at the Airport, no person shall skydive/parachute
Jump onto the Airport without the prior written permission of the Director. Skydive/parachute landings
shall only occur at an Authority approved and designated Drop Zone. Skydive/Parachute operations shall
be conducted in conformance with Advisory Circular (AC) 105-2E “Sport Parachuting”™ (as amended),

and the most current version of the Skydiver’s Information Manual published by the Umited States
Parachute Association (USPA).

Rules and Regulations 20
Texarkana Regional Airport Authority, Texarkana Regional Awrport (10/04/2023)



TEXARKANA AIRCRAFT

3. AIRCRAFT

3.1 Statutes and Ordinances

Aeronautical Activities shall conform to 14 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR), these Rules and
Regulations, the directives of the Director, or Air Traffic Control (ATC) personnel.

3.2, Based Aircraft Registration
Based Aircraft must be registered with the Authority or through an authorized Fixed Base Operator

(FBO) or Specialized Aviation Service Operator (SASQ) where the aircraft i1s based. Registration
information shall include the following:

# Airrcraft make, model, registration number, and maximum gross landing weight.
# Aircraft Owner’s and Aircraft Operator’s (1f different) name, address, and phone number.

o [ more than one person or entity owns and/or operates the aircraft, the name, address,
and phone number of all Arrcraft Owners and Aidrcraft Operators shall be provided.

» A Certificate of Insurance identifying the apphicable insurance coverages and amounts
required by the Authority.

o Adrcraft Owner and/or Aircraft Operator shall procure, maintain, and pay all premiums
and carry and keep policy in full force and effect throughout the registration period for
the applicable insurance coverages.

o (Coverage shall not be suspended, voided, or canceled by either party or reduced in
coverage or in limits except after 30 calendar days prior written notice, 14 calendar days
prior written notice for cancelation for non-payment of premium, by certified mail, return
recelpt requested, has been given to the Authority.

o The insurance company or companies underwriting the required policy shall be
authorized to write such msurance in the State of Arkansas (with a Best rating of A or
above) or be approved in writing by the Authority,

¢ The Authority reserves the right to require more or different types of insurance coverage
based on entity’s individual risks or exposures.

Entities responsible for Based Aircraft must have a lease or license agreement with either the Authority or
an authorized FBO or SASO,

3.3.  Non-Airworthy Aircraft

Only aircraft considered airworthy or with a special flight authorization by the FAA and military aircraft
shall use the Airport for aircraft parking, staging, or storage. Consistent with 14 CFR Chapter [ [Docket
No. FAA 2014-0463] FAA Policy on the Non-Aeronautical Use of Airport Hangars, as amended, non-
airworthy aircraft (including Non-Commercial construction of amateur-built or kit-built aircraft in
compliance with construction progress benchmarks) may undergo long-term major renovation or
restoration as long as the aircraft is stored in a Hangar approved for such Aircraft Maintenance or as
otherwise previously authorized in writing by the Director.

-

# Aircratt Owner or Aircraft Operator shall remove non-airworthy aircraft from the Airport
within 90 days of becoming non-airworthy unless otherwise previously authorized in writing
by the Director,

Rules and Regulations 21
Texarkana Regional Airport Authority, Texarkana Regional Airport (10/04/2023)



TEXARKANA AIRCRAFT
» I Aircraft Owner or Aircraft Operator is unknown or cannot be located, the Director shall
conspicuously post and affix such written notice to the aircraft and after 30 calendar days, the

aircraft will be deemed abandoned in accordance with Section 3.4 of these Rules and
Regulations.

3.4 Disabled and Abandoned Aircraft

Aarcraft Owner or Aircraft Operator shall be responsible for the safe and prompt removal of disabled
aircraft and any part thereof from a Movement Area, unless otherwise required or directed by the
Authority, FAA, National Transportation Safety Board (NTSB), or Agency having jurisdiction.

Abandoning an aircraft on the Airport is prohibited.

# An aircraft shall be considered Abandoned 1f the Aircraft Owner or Aircraft Operator (1) has
not paid in full applicable rents or fees to the Authority or an authorized Fixed Based
Operator (FBO) or Specialized Aviation Service Operator (SASO) for a period greater than
90 calendar days, (2) has not responded to written notification from or on behalf of the
Authority, by certified or registered mail, and/or (3) aircraft does not have a current and valid
registration with the FAA (or similar agency of a foreign country).

In the event the Authority determines the Aircraft Owner or Aircraft Operator is unavailable, unable, or
unwilling to remove a non-airworthy, disabled, or Abandoned aircraft in a timely manner (at Aircraft
Operator’s nisk, cost, and expense), the arrcraft may be impounded by the Authonty at the risk, cost, and
expense of the Aircraft Owner or Aircraft Operator, without liability to the Authority.,

» Once an aircraft i1s impounded by the Authority, the Authority shall charge reasonable
impoundment fees and thereafter publish a notice of intent to remove the aircraft in the legal
organ of Miller County, Arkansas.

# The Aircraft Owner or Aircraft Operator may claim the aircraft by responding to the
Authority in writing, paying the impoundment fees in full, and promptly removing the aircraft
from the Airport.

e |f the aircraft is not claimed within 90 calendar days by the Aircraft Owner or Aircraft
Operator, the Authority shall dispose of aircraft in accordance with federal, state, and
local statutes and ordinances.

The Authority shall retain any surplus ansing from the sale of the amrcraft after expenses,

incurred by the Authority in connection with the aircraft, have been paid.

Y

<

The Authority may assess and recover from the Aircraft Owner or Aircraft Operator all
applicable rents and fees, impoundment charges, and other related expenses including
reasonable attorney fees incurred by the Authority in connection the enforcement of these
provisions.

3.5,  Airport Hours of Operation

The public use aeronautical areas (Runways, Taxiways, and supporting infrastructure) of the Airport are
available for use 24 hours per day, 7 days per week, unless closed by Notice to Air Missions (NOTAM).

3.0, Accidents and Incidents

Any person involved in an Aircralt Accident or Aircraft Incident shall make a full and complete report to
the appropriate Agencies in a timely manner and provide a copy to the Authority, complete any additional
required forms and/or reports, and comply with NTSB Regulations Part 830,

Rules and Regulations 22
Texarkana Regional Airport Authority, Texarkana Regional Airport (10/04/2023)



TEXARKANA AIRCRAFT

» The report to the Authority shall include copies of any forms, reports, and/or documentation
provided to the NTSB, FAA, or other Agencies having jurisdiction.

Aircraft involved in an Accident may not be removed from the scene of the Accident until authorized by
the Authority who shall receive authorization from the FAA, NTSB, or Agencies having jurisdiction, as
apphicable. Once authorization to remove the aircraft has been i1ssued, the Aircraft Owner or Aircraft
Operator shall be responsible for the safe and prompt removal of the aircraft (and any parts) to a
designated area and the clean-up, repair, and restoration of any damage caused to Airport facilities and any
associated costs.

3.7 Prohibiting Use of the Airport

The Director shall have the right at any time to close or restrict use of the Airport or any portion thereof to
aircraft operations (except for an emergency operation) or deny the use of the Airport to any entity when
the Director considers such actions to be necessary and desirable in the interest of safety or security.

» The Director, the FAA, or ATC may issue or cancel a NOTAM to close or open the Airport
(or any portion thereof) or to restrict or terminate any activity at the Airport.

» Under no circumstance shall an authorized Airport closure or restriction constitute grounds
for reimbursement of any expense, loss of revenue, or damage which may be incurred by any
entity.

3.8, Maintenance

Adrcraft Mamtenance, mcluding arcraft painting or paint stripping, may only be performed within
Hangars, buildings or those areas specifically designated by the Authority and shall be limited solely to
that specifically permitted by the type rating established by Building and Fire Codes. and then, only in
compliance with the instructions of the Authority and the orders of the Fire Department.

Aircraft Line Maintenance may be performed on aircraft owned or operated by passenger or cargo Air
Carriers on the Air Carrier Ramp if the aircraft 1s disabled and cannot be moved into a Hangar or if a
Hangar of sufficient size to accommodate the aircraft does not exist at the Airport.

3.9.  Cleaning

Aireraft cleaning shall only be performed in full and complete compliance with the Authority’s SWPPP.
Adrcraft cleaming, which creates runoff, shall be approved by the Authority. Requests for permission shall
be submitted in writing and mclude the name of the Aircraft Operator, location, time and duration, entity
conducting aircraft cleaning, description of methods and materials to be used, and methods utilized to
contain contaminated materials resulting from the activity.

When non-biodegradable soap, solvents, and/or degreasers are used for aircraft cleaning, all residual
fluids (cleaning byproducts) must flow to an oil/water separator, be removed from the Airport, and/or be
disposed of in accordance with federal, state, and local statutes and ordinances.

3.10. Deicing
Aircraft deicing (the removal of snow and/or ice with chemical substances) shall only be accomplished in
full comphance with the Authority™s SWPPP and at location(s) specified and permitted by the Authonty.

3.11. Engine Operation

Aircraft engine Runups are not permitted between the hours of 10:00 p.m. and 6:00 a.m. except for
Runups required in preparation for aircraft departure or conducted in approved maintenance Runup
facilities. Engine Runups are prohibited in Non-Movement Areas or on the Air Carrier Ramp(s).

Rules and Regulations 23
Texarkana Regional Airport Authority, Texarkana Regional Airport (10/04/2023)



TEXARKANA AIRCRAFT
# Aircraft engines shall not be started within any structure,
}_

Aircraft controls shall be attended while aircraft engine(s) are operating,
# Propeller, engine, and exhaust noises shall be kept to a minimum.

Any person operating an aircraft engine in an area which is accessible to the public shall be alert and take
precautions to protect the public from potential hazards resulting from such operations. Starting an
aircraft engine when flammable hquid 1s on the ground in the immediate vicinity of the aircraft 1s
prohibited.

312, Parking and Storage

Aircraft shall be parked in such a manner as to be completely contained within the parking or Tiedown
space and shall not be positioned in such a manner so as to block a Taxiway or Taxilane, or obstruct
access to Hangars, parked or staged aircraft, parked or staged vehicles, equipment, gates, or fuel storage
facilities.

Unless utilizing the Airport identified general parking areas on a Leased Premises or otherwise provided
in an Agreement, no person shall use any area for the parking. staging, and storage of amrcraft, without
prior written permission of the Authority.

# In the event a person uses any area for aircraft parking, staging, or storage not in compliance
with the preceding provision, the Authority may remove and store the aircraft at the risk, cost,
and expense of the Aircraft Owner or Arrcralt Operator without hability to the Authority

Aircraft Operators shall ensure aircraft are properly secured, as set forth in AC 20-35 “Tiedown Sense”
(as amended), when parked and/or stored.

» Moored lighter-than-air aircraft shall have at least one person monitoring the safety of the
mooring for the duration of the mooring.

Upon request of the Authority for the purpose of safe, orderly, and efficient operation and use of the
Aarport, the Amrcraft Owner or Aarcraft Operator shall move the aircraft to a location and/or position
identified by the Director. In the event the Aircraft Owner or Aircraft Operator 1s unavailable, unable, or
unwilling, the Director may move the aircraft at the risk, cost, and expense of the Aircraft Owner or
Aircraft Operator without liability to the Authority.

313, Aircraft Security

In the event the type, use, or condition of an aircraft requires that security be obtained, provided, and/or
maintained, the Aircraft Owner or Aircraft Operator shall be responsible for such security and may only
provide (and/or arrange for) such security after notifying the Authority. Security measures shall not
hinder, delay, or prevent relocation or removal of aircraft at the direction of the Authority.

» No person shall interfere or tamper with any arrcraft in contradiction to these Rules and
Regulations without the Aircraft Owner’s or Aircraft Operator’s permission.

3.14.  Aircraft Operations

Operating an aircraft in a careless, negligent, or reckless manner which endangers or is likely to endanger
persons or Property is prohibited. Aircraft Operators shall obey all pavement markings signage, and
lighted signals unless instructed otherwise by ATC or by written notification of the Authority or
NOTAM.

Rules and Regulations 24
Texarkana Regional Airport Authority, Texarkana Regional Airport (10/04/2023)



TEXARKANA AIRCRAFT
» Aircrafi radio transmissions, il not for maintenance purposes, are prohibited while an aircraft

1s Inside a Hangar. Testing of an aircraft radar on the ground requires prior permission of the
Authority.

The starting, positioning, or taxiing of aircraft shall be done in such a manner to avoid generating
propeller or engine blast which may endanger persons or damage Property. It may be necessary to tow the
aircraft to a location or position at the Airport where the propeller or engine blast will not endanger
persons or damage Property when the engines are started or operated.

Adrcrafi shall not land, takeofT, taxi, park, or be staged in any area that has been restricted to a maximum
welght bearing capacity of less than the maximum weight of the aircraft or on any closed Runway or
Taxiway, unless authorized in writing by the Authority or due to an emergency.

-

# It shall be the Aircraft Operator’s responsibility to repair any damage caused by excessive
weight and/or other operations,

3.15. Taxiing and Towing Operations
Aarcraft shall not be taxied until the Aircraft Operator has determined (by visually inspecting the area)
there shall be no danger of collision with any person or Property.

#  Aircraft shall not be taxied into, out of, or within any structure,

Aiarcraft bemng taxied shall have a person at the controls of the aircraft who shall momitor the radio
transmitting frequency in use by ATC or CTAF when ATC is not in operation at the Airport if the aircraft
is equipped with a radio and the radio is functional.

Taxung aircraft shall yield the nght-of-way to Emergency Vehicles, equipment, or aircraft unless
otherwise directed by written notice of the Authority. Aircraft Operators shall not taxi at a speed greater
than is reasonable and prudent under the conditions that exist with regard for actual and potential hazards
and other aircraft so as not to endanger persons or Property.

Adircraft shall only be taxied or towed in areas normally used for operation of aircraft unless prior written
approval has been provided by the Authority.

3.16.  Rotorcraft Operations

Rotorcraft shall park or operate only in Movement Areas, aircraft parking areas, or arcas designated by
the Authority for rotorcraft operations. Rotorcraft shall not be operated within 50 feet of any structure or
fuel storage facility. Rotorcraft shall not be operated within 200 feet of any area where Light Aircraft are
parked or operating. Rotorcraft rotors must be stopped during fueling operations.

3.17.  Balloon Operations

Prior to entering the AOA, all balloon operators shall register the intended flight with the Director and be
familiar with the Airport.

Use of a handheld transceiver radio monitoring the radio transmitting frequency in use by ATC or CTAF
when ATC 1s not in operation at the Airport.

During balloon inflation, care shall be taken to avoid blocking roadways, Taxiways or interfering with
Aarport operations. Landing balloons on Runway 15 prohibited except in the event of an emergency.

Rules and Regulations 25
Texarkana Regional Airport Authority, Texarkana Regional Airport (10/04/2023)



LRhANRARA AIRCRAFT
3.18.  Noise Abatement Procedures

Consistent with the Aircraft Operator’s responsibility for complying with 14 CFR, the instructions of
ATC personnel, and the operating parameters of the aircraft as set forth by the amrcraft manufacturer,

Aircraft Operators are requested to use procedures which minimize the noise impact on surrounding
ATEas.

3.19.  Restricted Activities

Aircraft Operators shall receive prior written approval from the Director before engaging in any of the
following activities and shall conduct these activities in accordance with specific requirements stipulated
by the Authority:

# LUse of motorless aircraft — the landing upon or towing of gliders and other certificated
motorless aircraft.

# Use of ultralight vehicles — the landing or taking off of ultralight vehicles unless approved in

writing by the Director.

First flight or test flights after major airframe and/or powerplant modifications.

# Use of lighter-than-air aircraft — the landing or taking off of airships, dirigibles, blimps,
balloons, and other certificated hghter-than-air arcraft which utihze gasses or hot air to
provide lift.

# Banner or glider towing — the landing or taking off of aircraft which tow banners, ghiders, or
other devices.

» Sky diving, parachuting, or powered parachute operations. Skydive/Parachute operations
shall be conducted in conformance with AC 105-2E “Sport Parachuting™ (as amended), and
the most current version of the Skydiver’s Information Manual published by the United States
Parachute Association (USPA).

# Operation of model aircraft.

» Operators of unmanned aenal vehicle (UAV), unmanned aircraft svstem (UAS), or model
aircraft shall comply with all applicable federal, state, and local statutes and ordinances
(including 49 CFR Part 107). This may include, but is not necessarily limited to, notifying
and obtaining written permission from the Director to fly UAV, UAS, or model aircraft
within the Airport’s protected airspace.

# Operation of aircraft with a maximum certificated takeoft weight in excess of the published
weilght bearing capacity for the Runway(s) and/or Taxiway(s).

# Agricultural spraying.

#» Transportation of Hazardous Materials — landing or taking off with flammable, explosive, or
corrosive matenials, except those which are carned aboard (and necessary) for the operation
of the aircraft or use by crewmembers or passengers. All shipments of Hazardous Materals
shall comply with regulations established in 49 CFR Parts 100-199 and federal, state, and
local statutes and ordinances governing such shipments. Hazmat and Aircraft Rescue and Fire
Fighting equipment and trained personnel will be required for this type of operation as a
precautionary measure. Costs associated with trained hazmat personnel and related equipment
shall be borne solely and completely by the Aircraft Operator.

v

Rules and Regulations 26
Texarkana Regional Airport Authority, Texarkana Regional Airport (10/04/2023)



TEXARKANA AIRCRAFT
3.20. Fees

Aircraft shall not land or takeolT unless the Aircraft Owner or Aircraft Operator has paid the fees which
may be established and assessed by the Authority unless exempt by Agreement.

» Aircraft that may be exempt from Authority fees include aircraft owned and/or operated by
the United States of America, military forces of the United States of America, and foreign

military forces in support of allied military operations that do not utilize the Airport
significantly (as defined by the FAA).

The Authority shall have the authority to detain any aircraft for non-payment of any fees.

Rules and Regulations 27
Texarkana Regional Airport Authority, Texarkana Regional Airport (10/04/2023)



TEXARKANA PASSENGER TERMINAL BUILDING

4. PASSENGER TERMINAL BUILDING

4.1 Public Address System

Only those types of public address systems that are commonly employed to announce the arrival and
departure of scheduled aircraft or other information relevant to the operation of the Airport shall be
permitted for use in the Passenger Terminal Building,

-,

# No person shall use or cause to be used the public-address system for the solicitation of
business.
» The public-address system shall only be used in accordance with individual Agreements.

4.2, Vending Machines (Concessions)

Vending machines for the sale of goods, unless approved by Agreement, shall not be permitted in the
Public Areas of the Passenger Terminal Building.

4.3.  Smoking and Vaping

Smoking and vaping are prohibited in the Passenger Terminal Building and within 20 feet of the main
entrances, exits, operable windows, or ventilation system intakes. Cigarette/cigar butts, matches, and
lighters must be disposed in fireproof waste receptacles.

4.4.  Locks and Keys

The Authority will provide all initial door locks (and keys) and/or access media to authorized individuals
for access to the Passenger Terminal Building and for each Leased Premises, at the expense of the
Authornity. All subsequent lock changes or lost key replacements requested by the Lessee, 1f approved by
the Authority, shall be completed by the Authority at the Lessee’s sole cost and expense.

# Duplicate keys shall not be made and additional locks shall not be placed in or on the Leased
Premises without prior written authorization by the Authority.

4.5, Premises

Premises and adjacent areas shall be kept clean and free from rubbish. Corrnidor doors when not in use
shall be closed. No debris, trash, dirt, dust, or other like material shall be swept or thrown into corridors,
hallways, or stairwells.

» In the event infestation occurs of insects or amimals, the Lessee shall take immediate action
utihizing licensed eradication methods (if the responsibility of the Lessee through
Agreement).

# In the event the Lessee i1s unable to take mmmediate action, the Authority may take
appropriate action and shall have the right to collect the expense of such action for the Lessee
(if the responsibility of the Lessee through Agreement).

No area of the Passenger Terminal Building shall be used for storage of equipment, fixtures, or cargo
without prior authorization of the Authority. All decorations at ticket counters and gate areas are
prohibited without prior written authorization from the Authority. Any damage to Aiwrport facilities as a
result of the application of decorations may be charged to the Lessee as additional rent or cost recovery.,
Lessees shall not erect, install, or otherwise maintain any aerials, transmitters, or antenna without prior
written authorization from the Authority.

Rules and Regulations 28
Texarkana Regional Airport Authority, Texarkana Regional Airport (10/04/2023)



TEXARKANA PASSENGER TERMINAL BUILDING
4.6.  Baggage Conveyor System and Unclaimed Baggage
No person shall ride, walk, sit, or stand on the baggage conveyor system (or any portion thereof) and no

unauthorized items shall be placed on the baggage conveyor system. Entities responsible for operating
and loading the baggage conveyor system shall be responsible for unloading all unclaimed baggage.

4.7, Airline Operations

Passengers shall not be permitted to enplane or deplane an aircraft except in the presence of and only after
receiving express permission from authorized personnel. Aircraft must only be enplaned or deplaned in
designated areas unless prior permission by the Authority has been obtained. Authorized personnel must
escort and safely channel passengers through established routes to and from the aircraft.

Gate Usage and Assignments — Aircraft gates are pre-assigned or allocated for common use and
reserved for scheduled commercial, commuter, and approved contract Air Carrier aireraft only.

» Gates may only be used by the entity with an Agreement. An entity authorizing use of a gate
to another entity assumes full responsibility and must ensure usage 1s in accordance with the
Agreement.

It 1s the responsibility of flight and ground employees to ensure aircraft are taxied to and from gate
positions or parking locations without injuring or damaging any persons, equipment, building, other
aircraft, or any Property. All ground handling entities shall submit a Charter Flight Advisory form to the
Director at least 48 hours prior to the operation.

The assignment of Remain Overnight (RON) Air Carrier aircraft parking positions will be conducted by
the Authority.

4.8.  Engine Operation
Power back and power out procedures are prohibited without prior authorization from the Authority.

Use of auxiliary power units (APU) or ground power units (GPU) shall be kept at a minimum. Operators
shall use brnidge power whenever possible.

Engine cross bleed shall not be started until the aircraft is positioned on the Taxiway/Taxilane centerline
and the ground crew confirms procedure can be initiated without adverse impact on other aircraft,
vehicles, or personnel.

4.9.  Ground Support Equipment

Ground support equipment (including, but not limited to, chocks, air stairs, etc.) shall not be stored
outside the boundaries of the Leased Premises or designated area by the Authority. Lavatory service
equipment shall be well mantained and compatible with the waste receptacles provided by the Authonty.
All Ramp scrubbing shall be accomplished through use of approved vacuum type scrubbers and the
wastewater shall be disposed of in compliance with federal, state, and local statutes and ordinances. All
spillage of lavatory waste shall be immediately cleaned by the responsible party.

4.10.  Music in Passenger Terminal Building
No person may perform any live music without prior written authorization from the Director.

Rules and Regulations 29
Texarkana Regional Airport Authority, Texarkana Regional Airport (10/04/2023)



TEXARKANA VEHICLES

5. VEHICLES

5.1.  Statutes and Ordinances

All Vehicle Operators shall comply with the State of Arkansas code, these Rules and Regulations,
directives 1ssued by the Director, and the orders of the Police Department and Law Enforcement Officers.

5.2.  Licensing and Permit

Except for vehicles which are exclusively used on the AOA, all vehicles shall meet licensing and
registration requirements. Vehicle Operators must have a valid license and evidence of insurance as
required by state and local statutes and ordinances, including those vehicles operated exclusively on the
AOA.

Vehicle Operators who desire to operate on the AOA are required to successfully complete an Authority
training program and shall possess an Airport Badge prior to operating a vehicle with an Authority
approved hang tag on the AOA.

5.3 Equipment

Vehicles shall not be operated at the Airport unless the vehicle 15 in sound mechanical order, has adequate
lights, horn, and brakes, and provides clear and unobstructed visibility from the driver’s position. Trailers
and semi-trailers are not permitted at the Airport unless equipped with lights (or reflectors) on all sides
and a proper brakes/braking system. Trailers and semi-trailers shall not be disengaged from towing
vehicles.

5.4.  Operations

Vehicles shall not be operated in a careless, negligent, unsafe, or reckless manner; in disregard of the
rights, safety, and security of others; and without due caution and circumspection; or at a speed or in a
manner which endangers, or is likely to endanger, persons or Property. Vehicles constructed, equipped,
loaded, or maintained (or having attached thereto any object or equipment which drags, swings, or
projects) which endangers or 1s likely to endanger persons or Property 1s prohibited.

No tank vehicle, truck, or semi-trailer used for the transportation of flammable liquids or Fuel Handling,
shall be operated on the AOA unless approved in writing by the Authority.

Vehicles shall not be operated m any Hangar or structure for a prolonged period unless the vehicle
exhaust is protected by screens or baffles to prevent the escape of sparks. or the propagation of flame and
a vent system exists to prevent exhaust fumes from building up in the Hangar.

Vehicle Operators shall not, after receiving a visual or audible signal from an Authonty employee or a
Law Enforcement Officer, fail to stop the vehicle being operated, operate the vehicle in disregard of the
signal. or interfere with or endanger persons or Property. Vehicle Operators shall provide proper signals
and obey all traffic lights, signs, mechanical or electrical signals, and pavement markings unless directed
otherwise by the Authority or a Law Enforcement Officer.

The operation of vehicles which are overloaded (as defined in the vehicle owner’s operation manual) 1s
prohibited.

Persons shall not ride on the running board. in the beds of pickup trucks, ride on the outside of a vehicle,
or allow arms or legs to protrude from a vehicle except for Emergency Vehicles that are designed
specifically for such operations. Vehicle Operators shall vield the right of way to aircraft, Emergency
Vehicles, and pedestrians.

Rules and Regulations 30
Texarkana Regional Airport Authority, Texarkana Regional Airport (10/04/2023)



TEXARKANA VEHICLES

Vehicles shall not be operated in such a manner as to create a hazard or interfere with the safe and secure
operation of the aircraft,

# Vehicles, except Emergency Vehicles responding to an emergency, shall not overtake or pass
in front of a moving aircraft.

» Vehicles shall come no closer than 50 feet to a taxing aircraft and shall pass to the rear of

taxiing aircratft.

Vehicles shall not pass closer than 20 feet from any wing or tail section of a parked or staged

aircraft where practical.

hd

Vehicles used for hauling trash, dirt, or any loose material(s) shall be operated in such a fashion as to
prevent the contents from dropping, leaking, or otherwise escaping including, at a mimimum, covering the
load.

Aarside and Landside Speed Limuts

Safe Speed — Vehicles shall not be operated at a speed greater than is reasonable and prudent under
prevailing conditions and/or in a manner that endangers persons or Property.

Minimum Speed — Vehicles shall not be operated at such a slow speed as to impede or block traffic,
except necessary for safety or in compliance with state and local statutes and ordinances.

Maximum Speed — Vchicles, except Emergency Vehicles or equipment responding to an emergency,
shall not be operated in excess of the posted speed limits or in excess of any speed stipulated in these
Rules and Regulations. In areas where signs, markers, or devices are not used or posted, the speed hmat
shall be:

Maximum Speed (miles per hour)
Airside 10
Landside 15

Tugs (Towing Vehicles and Related Equipment)

Positive locking couplings are required for all towing vehicles and related equipment. Aircraft towing
vehicles and related equipment shall be returned to designated parking or staging areas immediately
following unloading.

5.5 Access Gate Security

Vehicle Operators shall stop and ensure the gate 15 fully closed before proceeding and shall also ensure
that no unauthonized vehicles or persons gain access to the Airport while the gate 1s in operation. If the
gate fails to close or the Vehicle Operator cannot prevent such access, the Vehicle Operator shall
immediately contact the Authority at 870-724-2171 or *9117,

5.6. Air Operations Area
Vehicles on the AOA may only be operated by persons with a proper and current Airport Badge and
displaying an Authority hang tag,

Vehicle Operators using the AOA on an irregular basis must be escorted by an authorized Vehicle
Operator or obtain permission from the Authority in writing and shall proceed directly to the Vehicle
Operator’s destination on the Airport without entering the Movement Area. The Authonty may restrict

Rules and Regulations 31
Texarkana Regional Airport Authority, Texarkana Regional Airport (10/04/2023)



TEXARKANA VEHICLES

vehicles to a certain area(s) of the AOA. Such restrictions may prohibit vehicle operations outside the
designated area(s).

The recreational use of motorhomes, mini-bikes, dirt bikes, all-terrain vehicles, go-carts, roller blades,
skateboards, bicvceles, unicyeles, or other similar devices is not permitted on the AOA without the prior
written permission from the Authonity.

5.7 Movement Area

No wvehicle shall enter the Movement Area without prior approval of the Director. Unless otherwise
provided herein, or approved in advance by the Director, coordination and two-way radio
communications with ATC (when in operation) and an Airport escort is required prior to entering the
Movement Area.

Vehicles routinely using the Movement Area shall be painted and/or properly marked in a manner
approved by the Authority. No person shall take or drive any vehicle on the Movement Area unless
permission has been granted in an Agreement or obtained in writing, in advance, from the Authority.

» Vehicle Operators having access to the Movement Area shall comply with the Letter of
Agreement between the Authority and ATC regarding Airport Surface Traffic Procedures.
Vehicle Operators shall obtain clearance from ATC and ensure that no aircraft is approaching
prior to entering the Movement Area.

Vehicles operating on the Movement Area on a regular basis shall be equipped with a functioning two-
way radio capable of communicating on the proper aeronautical frequencies (ranging from 108.00 MHz
to 136.00 MHz). In the event a vehicle in the Movement Area experiences radio failure, the vehicle must
vacate the area utilizing perimeter roadways or other non-controlled routes. If exit via non-controlled
route 1s not possible, the Vehicle Operator shall indicate radio failure by facing the vehicle towards the
control tower and flashing the vehicle’s headlights or calling the control tower directly at (870) 773-7901.

Vehicles operating on the Movement Area on a regular basis shall be equipped with an approved and
fully operational amber (or red for Emergency Vehicles only) rotating beacon on the roof or uppermost
point of the vehicle providing a 360-degree view and in compliance with AC 150/5210-5D "Painting,
Marking and Lighting of Vehicles Used on an Airport” (as amended). The beacon shall be activated and
remain in operation by the Vehicle Operator prior to entering the Movement Area.

Vehicles other than those that routinely traverse any portion of the AOA under the control of ATC, which
are not escorted by an Authority vehicle n constant two-way radio communication with ATC and
properly equipped and authorized to operate in the AOA, must be provided with a flag on a staff attached
to the vehicle so that the flag will be readily visible.

Vehicle Operators operating in the Movement Area must be conversant with standard colored light
signals, regardless of whether or not the vehicle is radio equipped.

# Steady Green — Cleared to cross, proceed, or go

Steady Red — Stop

Flashing Red — Clear the Runway/Taxiway

Flashing White — Return to starting point on the Airport
Alternating Red and Green — Exercise extreme caution

“_:" 1\:_:-'

v v

Rules and Regulations 32
Texarkana Regional Airport Authority, Texarkana Regional Airport (10/04/2023)



||'~uﬂ%m VEHICLES
5.8.  Accidents Involving Vehicles

A Vehicle Operator involved in an Accident resulting in any injury, death, or damage to Property shall
stop at the scene (or as close as possible to the scene without creating a safety hazard) and immediately
call *9117, The Vehicle Operator (and the vehicle) must remain at the scene until the Police Department,
Law Enforcement Officers, and/or the Fire Department take a full report.

5.9 Cleaning and Maintenance

Vehicles shall not be cleaned and/or maintained on the Airport, except for minor repairs which are
necessary to remove such vehicles from the Airport or in designated areas approved in writing by the
Authority,

5.10.  Parking or Stopping

Vehicles shall be parked only in designated areas unless otherwise authorized in writing by the Authority.
Vehicles shall not be parked or stopped in a manner that obstructs aircraft. vehicles, or pedestrians; within
15 feet of a fire hydrant or within a fire lane within 6 feet of either side of a secunty fence; and in
violation with applicable signage and postings.

Vehicles, other than those loading and unloading aircraft, shall not stop for any purpose other than in the
areas specifically designated for loading, unloading, parking, and/or staging and only in the manner
prescribed by signs, painted markings, or other means. Displaying vehicles and/or equipment for sale,
lease, or rent at the Airport is prohibited unless previously authorized in writing by the Authority.

# Parallel parking along the perimeter of the vehicle parking area shall be prohibited.
» Parking in designated public parking areas 1s open to any person using the Airport.

Emplovees of Operators, Lessees, or Sublessees may park Private Vehicles in the employee parking areas
designated by the Authority. Vehicles parked in a designated employee parking area must have a valid
parking permit or pass, if so required, attached to the front windshield or mirror of the registered vehicle.

All service vehicles or equipment (including utility companies, delivery companies, government
owned/operated, etc.) shall park in specially reserved and marked areas or other areas designated by the
Authority.,

Adrcraft Operators may park vehicles which are fully operational, completely functional and properly
permitted by the Authority inside the Hangar or outside the Hangar (but only in designated parking areas)
while the Based Aircraft in the Hangar is gone.

# Vehicles parked outside of a Hangar more than 30 calendar days without prior written
notification to the Authority shall be considered Abandoned and the Authority may take
whatever action i1s deemed appropriate to remove and/or dispose of the vehicle. Such action
shall be at the Vehicle Operator’s risk, cost, and expense and without any liability to the
Authority.

» Vehicles may not be parked on Tiedown areas.

#» Abandoning a vehicle anywhere on the Airport, including on Leased Premises, 1s prohibited.
A vehicle shall be considered Abandoned if it is of unknown ownership or parked in an
undesignated area.

Unless approved in writing by the Director, boats, rafis, jet skis, snow mobiles, dune buggies, dirt bikes,
all-terrain vehicles, race cars, recreational vehicles, trailers, and other similar vehicles may not be parked
or stored in a Hangar or anywhere else on the Airport.

Rules and Regulations 33
Texarkana Regional Airport Authority, Texarkana Regional Airport (10/04/2023)



TEXARKANA VEHICLES

The Authority may boot, tow, or otherwise remove any vehicle which is disabled or parked in violation of
these Rules and Regulations (or if the vehicle creates a safety or security hazard or interferes with Airport

operations) at the vehicle owner or Vehicle Operator’s risk, cost, and expense and without any liability to
the Authority.

5.11. Fees and Permits

Vehicles shall not be parked in any public parking area unless the vehicle owner or Vehicle Operator pays
the fees which may be established and assessed from time to time by the Authority unless the vehicle

owner or Vehicle Operator is exempt from payment as may be stipulated in an Agreement with the
Authority.

Rules and Regulations 34
Texarkana Regional Airport Authority, Texarkana Regional Airport (10/04/2023)



TEXARKANA COMMERCIAL VEHICLES

6. COMMERCIAL VEHICLES

6.1.  Statutes and Ordinances

Commercial Vehicle Operators shall comply with these Rules and Regulations and applicable federal,
state, and local statutes and ordinances (including 49 U.S.C. § 14501).

6.2. Vehicle and Operator Licensing

The Authority may, at the Authority’s sole option, require a Commercial Vehicle Operator (CVO)
desiring to provide commercial ground transportation services at the Airport to obtain a CVO Permit with
the Authority.

6. 3. Parking or Stopping

After discharging passengers, each Commercial vehicle shall immediately leave the Airport (not Loiter)
or proceed by the most direct route to the designated area for passenger pickup. Commercial vehicles
shall not be parked, staged, or stopped in such a manner as to interfere with vehicular or pedestrian traffic,
with moving aircraft, moving Refueling Vehicles, Emergency Vehicles, ramp service personnel, pilots
and passengers, and pedestrians.

6.4, Operator Conduct and Appearance

CVO shall remain in its vehicle or immediately adjacent to its vehicle except when necessary to use the
restroom facilities, vending machines, or obtain flight information in which case, the CVO may be absent
from the vehicle (or the immediate vicinity of the vehicle) for no more than five minutes.

»  CWVO 1s prohibited from Loitering.

CVO is prohibited from standing inside the Passenger Terminal Building while the Commercial vehicle 1s
in position in the designated area for passenger pickup.

CVO shall not:

» solicit, persuade, or urge any person (by words, gestures, or other form of communication) to
use or hire any CVO,
» use offensive, abusive, or obscene language, gestures, or other forms of communication,

CWVO shall maintain a professional look and appearance (i.e.. clean shirt and pants, shoes, and socks).
CWVO shall conduct themselves in a courteous and professional manner and treat members of the traveling
public with the utmost respect.

6. 5. Passenger Loading or Unloading
CWVO shall only receive passengers for hire in an area designated by the Authority following authonzed
procedures, CVO may not refuse a passenger for any reason unless stipulated herein.

# (VO may refuse service if the CVO has been dispatched on another call or if passenger(s)
appear to be intoxicated or under the influence of drugs or alcohol or 1s disorderly.

Nothing in these Rules and Regulations shall be construed to prevent a passenger from boarding the
Commercial vehicle of the passenger’s choice. CVO shall be trained and provide transportation services
for disabled or handicap passengers.

Rules and Regulations 35
Texarkana Regional Airport Authority, Texarkana Regional Airport (10/04/2023)



TEXARKANA COMMERCIAL VEHICLES
6. 6. Commercial Vehicle Operations
CVO shall use the most direct available route on all trips unless otherwise specifically requested by the

passenger, CVO shall provide a receipt identifying the amount paid, persons™ name, vehicle hcense
number, and Authority CVO number to the passenger.

6.7.  Commercial Vehicle Equipment and Condition

All Commercial vehicles shall be kept in good operating condition and appearance. Each Commercial
vehicle shall be subject to inspection by the Authority at any time to determine compliance with these
Rules and Regulations,

#» Failure to pass any portion of the inspection may result in the Commercial vehicle being
prohibited from picking up and/or dropping off passengers until the discrepancies have been
corrected to the satisfaction of the Authority.

If Commercial vehicle 1s required to have a taximeter, CVO shall ensure the taximeter is in proper
recording position and visible to all passengers as well as a meter light burning during the hours of
darkness.

0. 8. Fees

Nothing n these Rules and Regulations shall be construed as granting any CVO the right to operate at the
Adrport without first obtaining written authorization from the Authority,

6. 9. Complaints

CVO shall respond fully in writing and/or as otherwise requested by the Authority within 14 calendar
days to any written customer compliant to or from the Airport and shall assist the Authority to investigate
and resolve customer complaints. CVO shall respond fully in writing and/or as otherwise requested by the
Authority within 14 calendar days to any inquiry by the Authority.

Rules and Regulations 36
Texarkana Regional Airport Authority, Texarkana Regional Airport (10/04/2023)



TEXARKANA TENANT

7. TENANT

7.1.  Introduction

Tenant used herein refers to any person, Association, and/or entity that has entered into an agreement with
either the Authority or an Operator to occupy land and/or improvements (Leased Premises) at the Airport.

7.2, Security

All gates, chains, doors, fences, lighting, locks, and all other safeguards which are part of the Leased
Premises or have been installed by the Tenant must be continually and conscientiously maintained by the
Tenant and kept in working conditions. Gates or doors which provide access to a Restricted Area through
Leased Premises must remain closed, locked, and secured except when in use. Perimeter fencing and
assoclated doors, gates, highting, and locks will be maintained by the Authority,

Active logs of keys. Airport Badges, access cards, and other media issued (and to whom issued) which
allow access to the Leased Premises must be maintained. The log shall be made available to the Authority
upon request. Any lost or stolen keys, Airport Badges, access cards, or other media shall be reported to
the Authority immediately. All applicable reporting requirements must be fully complied with as
established by the Authority, FAA, Department of Homeland Security (DHS), TSA (if applicable), and
any other Agency having jurisdiction. Objects which could facilitate unauthorized access to a Restricted
Area shall not be located within six feet of the Airport perimeter fence or any other distance which may
facilitate unauthorized access.

7.3.  Construction or Alteration of Improvements

Any construction or alteration of an Improvement on the Leased Premises shall be performed in
compliance with the Authority’s Minimum Construction Standards, FAA Advisory Circulars, FAA Form
7460-1 Notice of Proposed Construction or Alteration, or local building codes.

7.4, Maintenance of Premises
Leased Premuses (including all related and associated appurtenances, landscaping, paved areas, installed
equipment and utility services, oil/water separators, and security improvements) shall be:

» kept free from all fire, safety, and security hazards,

» kept free and clear of snow as much as practicable,

» maintained in a clean, neat, orderly, and fully operational condition consistent with best
practices and equal or better in appearance and character to other similar Improvements at the
Airport, normal wear and tear expected, and

#» maintained in a condition of repair and maintenance in accordance with the Agreement.

Tenants shall be fully responsible for and replace, or in the Authority’s sole discretion, reimburse the
Authority for all damage to facilities, equipment, Property, related appurtenances, and all other
Improvements at the Airport caused by Tenant or its employees, agents, customers, visitors, suppliers, or
persons with whom Tenant does business.

Tenants shall provide all necessary cleaning services for the Leased Premises, including janitorial and
custodial services, trash removal services, removal of foreign objects debris, removal of spent oils or
other fluids, cleaning of oil/water separators, and any related services necessary to maintain the
Improvements in a good, clean, neat, orderly, and fully operational condition consistent with best
practices, normal wear and tear expected. Facilities (including Hangar floors) shall be kept clean and clear
of the accumulation of fuel, oil, grease, flammable liquids, rags, trash, or other waste materials.

Rules and Regulations 37
Texarkana Regional Airport Authority, Texarkana Regional Awrport (10/04/2023)



TEXARKANA TENANT

» The use of volatile or flammable solvents for cleaning floors is prohibited.

Facades of all buildings and structures shall be kept in good repair, condition, and appearance at all times,
Failure to properly maintain the Leased Premises (including failure to maintain the Leased Premises
within the period stipulated in the Agreement or failure to maintain the Leased Premises within the
timeframe stated in any written notice provided by the Authority) may result in the Authonty conducting
or contracting the maintenance at Tenant’s sole cost and expense without liability to the Authority,

7.5, Fire Prevention

Tenants shall be responsible to ensure fire prevention practices and/or procedures are followed and
comply with the Arkansas Fire Protection Code and all fire codes, regulations, or directives issued by the
Fire Department and/or the Authority.

Employees conducting Fuel Handling must receive fire prevention training and instruction in accordance
with an FAA Approved Part 139 Fuel Handling Training course immediately upon employment and
receive such fire prevention training and instruction annually thereafier.

Proper, appropriate, inspected, certified, and readily accessible fire extinguishers (which are approved by
fire underwriters) shall be provided by Tenants.

» Fire extinguishers shall be maintained in accordance with the Arkansas Fire Protection Code.

# A tag showing the date of last inspection (and inspection entity) shall be attached to each fire
extinguisher and records, (acceptable by fire underwriters) shall be maintained identifying the
status of each unit,

Tenant shall identify and provide contact information to the Fire Department for a responsible person and
secondary contact. Contact information shall include the name of each individual and a daytime and after-
hours telephone numbers.

7.6.  Heating Equipment

All heating equipment and fuel burning appliances installed or used at the Airport shall comply with all
federal, state, and local statutes and ordinances (as applicable) of the Authority, the State of Arkansas, and
the Fire Department,

7.7 Aircraft Hangars

The use of Hangars shall conform with all federal, state, and local statutes and ordinances including
applicable building codes as well as the Arkansas Fire Protection Code and all fire codes, regulations, or
directives issued by the Fire Department and the Authority. Each Hangar shall be equipped with a proper,
appropriate, inspected, certified, and readily accessible fire extinguisher that conforms with federal, state,
and local statutes and ordinances.

Aircraft Hangars shall only be used for the parking and storage of aircraft and associated aircraft
equipment and supplies as approved by the Authority and the Fire Department or as otherwise stipulated
in an Agreement. Use of aireraft Hangars shall be subject to the following restrnictions:

# Linless otherwise directed by the Authority, the use of Hangars shall conform with 14 CFR
Chapter I [Docket No. FAA 2014-0463] FAA Policy on the Non-Aeronautical Use of Airport
Hangars, as amended.

Rules and Regulations 38
Texarkana Regional Airport Authority, Texarkana Regional Awrport (10/04/2023)



"‘%M TENANT

» Aircrafl Hangars shall only be used by the Tenant and its employees, agents, customers,
visitors, suppliers, or persons for the parking and storage of Aircraft and associated Aircraft
equipment and supplies as approved in writing by the Director and the Fire Department or as
otherwise stipulated in an Agreement. All items stored must belong to the Tenant authorized
to use the Hangar.

# The pre-flight sumping of fuel systems may only be performed while the aircraft 15 outside of
the Hangar.

#» Space heaters may be utilized in Hangars so long as not left unattended while operating and
all applicable fire prevention/safety measures are continually observed.

» Oily rags, waste oil, or other materials soiled with petroleum-based products may only be
stored in containers with self-closing, tight-fitting lids in accordance with applicable federal,
state, and local statutes and ordinances.

Aircraft parked in Hangars shall be parked in a manner to be completely contained in the Hangar and
shall not be positioned m such a manner to block a Taxiway or Taxilane, or obstruct access to Hangars,
parked or staged amrcraft, parked or staged vehicles, doors, gates, or fuel storage facilities except for
temporary staging and/or Fuel Handling of such aircratt.

Ajdrcraft Maintenance may be conducted on Tenant’s owned Aircraft within Tenant’s premises, provided
such individuals are permitted to conduct such Aircraft Maintenance in compliance with FAA regulations,
Aarcraft Maintenance within Hangars shall not include the following, unless expressly approved in
writing by the Director:

» Welding

Cutting

Open flames and torches

Servicing any part of a fuel system or transferring fuel

v Y

¥

The above list 15 not intended to represent all Aircraft Maintenance items prohibited within Hangars based
on the Building and Fire Codes; but is intended to 1dentify those items that may commonly be performed
as part of Aircraft Maintenance. As outlined in the PMCDs, all Activities and uses within Tenant’s
premises must comply with all applicable federal, state, and local statutes and ordinances.

7.8 Aircraft Tiedowns

Aircraft parked in a Tiedown space shall be parked in a manner to be completely contained in the
Tiedown space and shall not be positioned in such a manner to block a Taxiway or Taxilane, or obstruct
access to Hangars or Tiedowns, parked or staged aircraft, parked or staged vehicles, doors, gates, or fuel
storage facilities except for temporary staging and/or Fuel Handling of such aircrafi.

» I performed in full comphance with federal, state, and local statutes and ordimances,
preventative Aircraft Maintenance, as defined in 14 CFR Part 43, may be performed on the
aircraft listed in the Agreement for the Tiedown space.

7.9.  Storage of Materials and Equipment
Materials and equipment shall be stored in such manner as to preclude creating any hazard, obstructing
any operation, or littering.

#» Storage of materials or equipment, excluding Refueling Vehicles, shall not be permitted
outdoors, unless approved in writing by the Authority.

Rules and Regulations 39
Texarkana Regional Airport Authority, Texarkana Regional Awrport (10/04/2023)



TEXARKANA TENANT
» Non-hazardous items can be stored in a fully enclosed and secured container on the Leased

Premises as long as such storage fully complhies with federal, state, and local statutes and

ordinances.

Unless expressly permitted in an existing Agreement or approved in writing by the Authority,

the Leased Premises shall not be used to store non-aviation merchandise, supplies, or
equipment excluding those items utilized to fulfill the obligations of an Agreement.

L

Railroad (box or tanker) cars, intermodal containers, or tanker, truck, or flatbed trailers, etc. shall not be
stored or used to store any type of materials, vehicles, or equipment without the prior written permission
of the Authority.

210, Compressed Gases

Oxygen or any compressed gas in a cylinder or portable tank must be secured to a fixed location or
secured to a portable cart designed and approved specifically for the cylinder(s) or tank(s) being secured.

» Compressed gas cylinders or tanks must have approved, and fully operational pressure relief
devices installed.

» Cylinders or tanks not in use shall have an approved transportation safety cap nstalled.

# Cylinders or tanks shall be stored and maintained in accordance with the Arkansas Fire
Protection Code.

~ 1. Lubricating Oils

Lubricating oils having a flash point at or above 150 degrees may be stored in Hangars provided the
product is stored in the original container and the capacity of the container is less than 55 gallons and the
original manufacturer’s labeling or marking is on the container (or the product is stored in other suitable
containers approved by the Authority and the Fire Department).

Storage of more than 55 gallons of lubricating o1l or containers having a capacity of more than 55 gallons
require a SPCC Plan be provided to the Authority. Such containers may only be stored in compliance
with federal, state, and local statutes and ordinances and consistent with the Authority’s SWPPP.

7.12.  Right of Entry
The Authority shall have the right of entry at reasonable times for repairs, maintenance, modification, or
inspection of all Improvements whether the right of entry 1s provided for in any Agreement,

# For Improvements owned by the Authority, the Tenant shall provide the Authority with a key
capable of gaining access to the facilities, buildings, and Improvements.

#» For Improvements owned by the Tenant, the Authority shall provide 48-hours advanced
notification.

The Authority and the Fire Department shall have the right of entry to Improvements without advanced
notification during emergencies. Emergencies may include, but shall not be limited to, fire, acts of nature,
or Hazardous Materials spill or leak, or for the protection of persons or Property.

7.13.  Non-Commercial Flying Club

A Non-Commercial Flying Club (Flying Club) 1s an entity that is legally formed as a non-profit entity
with the State of Arkansas, operates on a non-profit basis, and does not hold the Flying Club out to the
public as an FBO or SASO. A Flying Club shall conform with FAA Order 5190.6B Airport Compliance

Manual, Section 10.6 (as amended).

This section does not apply to social flying clubs or groups who do not jointly own or operate aircraft.

Rules and Regulations 40
Texarkana Regional Airport Authority, Texarkana Regional Awrport (10/04/2023)



TEXARKANA TENANT

» Each Flying Club member (Member) must have an ownership interest in the Flying Club. The
property rights of the Flymg Club Owners shall be equal.

# Flying Club shall keep on file and available for review by the Authority, a complete

membership list and ownership share held by each member including a record of all members
(past and present) with full names, addresses, and the date the membership began and ended.

The Flying Club shall file and keep the following current with the Authority:

~ articles of incorporation, copies of bylaws, operating membership agreements, and the
location and address of the club’s registered office,

» roster of all officers and directors including home and business addresses and telephone
numbers, and

# designee responsible for compliance with applicable federal, state, and local statutes and
ordinances.

Flying Clubs shall not conduct any Commercial Activity. If the Flying Club is operated for Commercial
purposes, the Flying Club shall be required to meet the applicable Minimum Standards for a Commercial
Activity.

Members may conduct flight instruction relating to amcraft checkout and/or currency (e.g., fhght reviews,
instrument proficiency checks, etc.) for other Members. The Non-Commercial Flying Club shall not
permit its aircraft to be utilized for flight instruction to any person, including members (Owners), when
such person pays or becomes obligated to pay for such flight instruction, except when flight instruction
provided by an approved Flight Training Operator on the Airport. The Flying Club may permit its aircraft
to be used for flight mstruction as long as both the instructor and person receiving nstruction are
members of the Flying Club, or instruction is given by a Flight Training (as defined in the Minimum
Standards) and the person receiving the training is a member of the Flying Club. A flight instructor may
recelve Compensation for instruction or may be compensated by credit against payment of dues or flight
time; however, that individual may not receive both Compensation and waived or discounted dues or
flight time concurrently.

T

# Flying Club aircraft shall only be used by Members.

A qualified mechanic who is a Member of the Flying Club may perform maintenance work on aircraft
owned by the Flying Club. The mechanic may receive Compensation for such maintenance work or may
be compensated by credit against payment of dues or flight time; however, that individual may not
receive both Compensation and waived or discounted dues or flight time concurrently.,

Insurance — Except as otherwise provided for herein, a Non-Commercial Flying Club shall procure,
maintain, and pay all premiums throughout the term of Agreement for the insurance minimum coverages
and limits required by federal, state, and local statutes and ordinances and set forth below:

» General Liability (Combined Single Limit):
* FEach occurrence — $1.,000,000
e Unlicensed vehicles — $1,000,000
» Vehicular Liabihity (Combined Single Limat):
e Each occurrence — $1.000,000
» Aircraft and Passenger Liability (Each Occurrence):
e Each occurrence — $1,000,000 Club and $100,000 sub limit per person

Rules and Regulations 41
Texarkana Regional Airport Authority, Texarkana Regional Awrport (10/04/2023)



TEXARKANA TENANT

The insurance company(ies) underwriting the required policies shall be authorized to write such insurance
in the State of Arkansas (with a Best rating of A or above) or be approved in writing by the Authority.

When coverages or limits set forth in the Airport’s Minimum Insurance Requirements are not
commercially available, appropriate replacement coverages or limits must be approved in writing by the
Authority at least 30 calendar days before Non-Commercial Flying Club is scheduled to commence
operation at the Airport,

The Authority reserves the right to require more or different types of insurance coverage based on entity’s
individual risks or exposures associated with Non-Commercial Flying Club operation.

All insurance policies, which Non-Commercial Flying Club is required to carry and keep in full force and
effect, shall contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions.

# “Texarkana Regional Airport Authority, individually and collectively, and its representatives,
officers, officials, employees, agents, and volunteers are to be covered as additional msured
with respect to: hability arising out of activities performed by or on behalf of entity; premises
owned, leased, occupied, or used by entity; or vehicles, equipment, or aircraft owned, leased,
hired, borrowed, or operated by entity. Such insurance shall provide primary coverage and shall
not seek any contribution from any nsurance or self-insurance carmed by agent or the
Texarkana Regional Airport Authority.”

# “Such insurance, as to the interest of the Texarkana Regional Airport Authority only, shall not
be invalidated by any act or neglect or breach of contract of entity. Any failure to comply with
reporting or other provisions of the policies, including any breach of warranty, shall not affect
coverage provided to Texarkana Regional Airport Authority, individually and collectively, and
its representatives, officers, officials, employees, agents, and volunteers. Entity’s insurance
shall apply separately to each insured against whom claim is made or suit is brought, except
with respect to the aggregate limits of the insurer’s liability.”

»  “Coverage shall not be suspended, voided, or canceled by either party or reduced in coverage or
in himits except after 30 calendar days prior written notice, 14 calendar days prior written notice
tor cancelation for non-payment of premium, by certified mail, return receipt requested, has
been given to Texarkana Regional Airport Authority.”

Companies issuing required insurance policies shall have no recourse against the Authority for payment
of premiums or assessments for any deductibles that are the sole responsibility and risk of the Non-
Commercial Flying Club. Certificates of insurance for the insurance coverages required by federal, state,
and local statutes and ordinances and set forth herein shall be delivered to the Authority upon execution
of any Agreement. Thereafter, Non-Commercial Flying Club shall provide certificates of insurance to the
Authority every 12 months. In addition, Non-Commercial Flying Club shall furmish a certificate of
insurance 1f any change (e.g., changing underwriters, coverages, or amounts) occurs.

Rules and Regulations 42
Texarkana Regional Airport Authority, Texarkana Regional Awrport (10/04/2023)



"‘%M TENANT
Indemnification — Non-Commercial Flying Club shall defend, indemnify, save, protect, and hold
harmless the Authority, individually and collectively, and its representatives, officers, officials,
employees, agents, and volunteers from and against {and reimburse the Authority for) any and all actual
or alleged claims, demands, damages, expenses, costs, fees (including, but not limited to, attorney,
accountant, paralegal, expert, and escrow fees), lines, environmental costs, and/or penalties (collectively
referred to as costs) which may imposed upon, claimed against or incurred or suffered by the Authority
and which, in whole or in part, directly or indirectly, arise from or are in any way connected with any of
the following, except to the extent resulting from the Authority’s negligence or willful misconduct: (a)
any act, omission, or negligence of Non-Commercial Flying Club or Non-Commercial Flying Club’s
partners, officers, directors, agents, employees, invitees, or contractors; (b) any use or occupation,
management, or control of the Non-Commercial Flying Club’s Leased Premises, whether or not due to
Non-Commercial Flying Club’s own act or omission; (c) any condition created in or about the Non-

Commercial Flying Club’s Leased Premises after the effective date; and (d) any breach, violation, or
nonperformance of the Non-Commercial Flying Club’s obligations under any Agreement and use of the

Airport.

In the event a party indemnified hereunder is responsible, in part, for the loss, the indemnitor shall not be
relieved of the obligation to indemnify; however, in such a case, liability shall be shared in accordance
with the State Arkansas’s principles of comparative fault,

In the event of an environmental law violation or an environmental contaminating accident or incident
caused by Non-Commercial Flying Club or Non-Commercial Flying Club’s employees, vendors,
suppliers, contractors, or any other entity associated with Non-Commercial Flying Club or in the event
any of these entities violates any environmental law, the Non-Commercial Flying Club shall accept total
responsibility and defend. indemnify, save, protect, and hold harmless the Authority, individually and
collectively, and its representatives, officers, officials, employees, agents, and volunteers.

Nothing herein shall constitute a waiver of any protection available to the Authority, individually and
collectively, and 1ts representatives, officers, officials, employees, agents, and volunteers under the State
of Arkansas’™ governmental immunity act or similar statutory provision,

Rules and Regulations 43
Texarkana Regional Airport Authority, Texarkana Regional Awrport (10/04/2023)



TEXARKANA AVIATION FUELING

8. AVIATION FUELING

8.1 General

Statutes and Ordinances — Fuel Handling, Refueling Vehicles, and fuel storage facilities at the Airport
shall conform to the federal, state, and local statutes and ordinances including without limitation, those
prescribed by the State of Arkansas and Authority and appropriate provisions of 14 CFR; A4A 103;
Applicable ACs including AC 150/5230-4B “Aircraft Fuel Storage, Handling, Training, and Dispensing
on Airports” (as amended), AC 00-34A "Aircraft Ground Handling and Servicing”(as amended), and AC
150/5210-5D "Painting, Marking and Lighting of Vehicles Used on an Airport" (as amended); the
Authority’s SWPPP; federal, state, and local statutes and ordinances established by the Environmental
Protection Agency (EPA), Arkansas Department Of Energy and Environment, Arkansas Department Of
Agriculture , and any other Agency having jurisdiction.

Fuel Quality Control — Fuel shall comply with the quality specifications outlined in American Society
for Testing and Matenals (ASTM) D1655 (Jet Fuel), ASTM D910 (Avgas), or ASTM D4s14 (Mogas).
Ensuring the quality of the fuel is the sole responsibility of entity engaged in Fuel Handling.

Diesel Exhaust Fluid (DEF) Contamination — Personnel are to be trained on the proper storage and
handling of DEF to prevent the contamination of Fuel System Icing Inhibitor (FSII) or Jet Fuel. If used in
Refuehing Vehicles or other ground service equipment, DEF must be stored in a separate cabinet or
facility from FSII storage and handling areas should be clearly labeled. All DEF transfers between
containers must be handled by trained personnel and logged appropriately.

Training — No person shall engage in Fuel Handling until that person 1s tramned. Training records
documenting the qualifications of (and the tramning provided to) each person shall be maintained and kept
on file.

» Records shall indicate the initial and recurrent training provided (and the date such training
was provided and by whom).

# Recurrent training shall be provided on a regularly scheduled basis, but not less than every
year.

# Records shall be subject to review of and/or inspection by the Authority or other designated
representative(s).

# Training shall be performed in accordance with 14 CFR Part 139,

Standard Operating Procedure (SOP) — SOP shall be developed and maintained for Fuel Handling to
include compliance with standards set forth in AC 00-34A “Aircraft Ground Handling and Servicing" (as
amended). The SOP shall include a training plan, fuel quality assurance procedures, record keeping, and
emergency response procedures related to fuel spills and fires. The SOP shall also address regular safety
and security inspections, bonding and fire protection, public protection, marking and labeling of (and
controlling access to) Refueling Vehicles and fuel storage facilities. The SOP shall be made available to
the Authority for review upon request no later than 30 calendar days before any Fuel Handling is
scheduled to commence and 1t shall be made available for review upon request any time changes are
planned.

Fuel Handling — Aircraft shall not be engaged in Fuel Handling in an area where aircraft engines are
operating, aircraft or engines are being warmed by application of heat, or while the aircraft is in a
congested area.

Rules and Regulations 44
Texarkana Regional Airport Authority, Texarkana Regional Airport (10/04/2023)



TEXARKANA AVIATION FUELING
All Fuel Handling shall be treated with due caution and circumspection with regard to the rights, safety,
and security of others so as not to endanger, or be likely to endanger., persons or Property. If any
malfunction or irregularity is detected on or within the aircraft, Fuel Handling shall cease immediately,
and the malfunction or irregularity shall be brought to the attention of the Aircraft Owner or Aircraft

Operator immediately. Persons engaged in Fuel Handling shall exercise care and extreme caution to
prevent overflow or spills of fuel or oils.

# Should a fuel or oil spill occur at the Airport, the party responsible shall comply with Section
2.19. of these Rules and Regulations.

Fuel Handlhing shall be conducted 1n accordance with the procedures stipulated n the Awrcraft Operator’s
Manual. Fuel Handling shall not occur if an electrical storm 1s in progress within 5 miles of the Airport
and may resume 15 minutes following any reported or observed lightning flash within 5 miles of the

Adrport.

Unless engaging in Rapid Refueling, Fuel Handling shall not occur while passengers are on board the
aircraft unless a passenger-loading ramp 1s in place at the aircraft’s cabin door, the door 1s in the open
position, and a qualified attendant is present at the door. No person shall operate any cellphone, radio
transmitter, or receiver or switch the transmitter or receiver on or off during Fuel Handling unless said
radio transmitter or receiver 18 designed specifically for such environment.

No person shall operate aircraft electrical systems or switch aircrafi electrical appliances on or off during
Fuel Handling.

» Smoking, vaping, maiches, lighters, and open flames (e.g., candles, fixtures, or fires) are
prohibited within 50 feet of any aircraft, Refueling Vehicle, fuel storage facility.

Fire extinguishers shall be immediately available during Fuel Handling to comply with the Arkansas Fire
Protection Code and all fire codes, regulations, or directives issued by the Fire Department and/or the
Authority,

#» All extinguishers shall be inspected and certified, as required by law, and all personnel
involved with fueling or defueling operations shall be qualified and trained to use all fire
extinguishers.

The Authority assumes no hability or responsibility for any violation of any aircraft, Refueling Vehicle,
or refueling requirement or procedure, any error, omission, negligence, or any violation of any Legal
Requirement relating to Fuel Handling.

» Entities engaged in Fuel Handling shall be solely, fully, and completely responsible for any
such violation, error, omission, or negligence incident to or in connection with the entities
fuel storage facilities, Refueling Vehicles, Fuel Handling, and training.

» Entities engaged in Fuel Handling shall fully reimburse the Authority for any fines, legal or
court costs, mcurred by the Authonty for any such violation, error, omission, or neghigence.

Prior to engaging in Fuel Handling, entity shall provide the Authority with a written SPCC Plan that
meets all applicable federal, state, and local statutes and ordinances. An updated copy of the SPCC Plan
shall be filed with the Authority at least 30 calendar days prior to any planned change in operations. A
trained person shall be present and responsive while fuel is being transferred into or out of any fuel
storage facility or any Refueling Vehicle.

Rules and Regulations 45
Texarkana Regional Airport Authority, Texarkana Regional Airport (10/04/2023)



TEXARKANA AVIATION FUELING
» The person shall remain within the immediate vicinity, in close proximity to, and in direct
view of all operating controls and Refueling Vehicles.
# The person shall not leave the discharge end of any hose(s) unattended at any time while the
transfer of fuel is in progress.
# The person shall not block open, bypass, disengage, or deactivate the deadman or any related
controls while Fuel Handhing.

Refueling Vehicles shall be positioned so the vehicle can be safely driven away in the event of spill or
fire. Fuel Handling shall be conducted outdoors and at least 25 feet from any Hangar or building and 50
feet from any combustion and ventilation air-intake to any boiler, heater, or incinerator room or as
approved by the Authonty and the Fire Department.

Vehicles shall be refueled only at refueling stations approved by the Authority and the Fire Department.
In the absence of suitable ground support equipment, a turbine-powered APU mounted at the rear of the
aircraft or on the wing on the side opposite from the fueling point may be operated during Fuel Handling.
A turbine-powered APU may be operated during Fuel Handling provided its design, nstallation, location,
and combustion air source do not constitute a fuel vapor ignition source.

The Refueling Vehicle shall be bonded to the aircraft or fuel storage facility to equalize the voltage
potential. All hoses, nozzles, spouts, funnels, and appurtenances used in Fuel Handling shall be Factory
Mutual (FM) or Underwriters Laboratories (UL) approved and shall be equipped with a bonding device to
prevent ignition of volatile liquids.

Hold down or hold open devices on Refueling Vehicle nozzles are prohibited. For single point fueling,
deadman controls or mechamsms shall be utihzed and shall remain in safe operating condition and good
working order. No person shall deactivate or bypass a deadman control or mechanism at any time. During
Fuel Handling, no person shall use any material or equipment which is likely to cause a spark or ignition
within 50 feet.

Retueling Vehicles (including fuel tankers) shall only use the entrance, exit, and route designated by the
Authority during the transportation and delivery of fuel. Refueling Vehicles (including fuel tankers) shall
be subject to inspection at any time to determine compliance with these Rules and Regulations.

Appropriate and proper absorbent material(s) and fuel spill containment capable of damming/diking a fuel
spill shall be immediately available or as required in the entity’s approved SPCC Plan.

Rotorcraft Rapid Refueling (Hot Fueling) — In the event Rotorcraft fueling occurs while an onboard
engine is operating, an entity must comply with all federal, state, and local statutes and ordinances.

Only turbine engine Rotorcraft fueled with Jet Fuel shall be permitted to be fueled while an onboard
engine is operating. All sources of 1gnition must be located above the fuel inlet port(s), vents, or tank
openings. An FAA licensed Rotorcraft pilot shall be at the Rotorcraft controls during the entire Fuel
Handling process. If applicable, medical crew members shall be ready to remove the patient from the
Rotorcraft to a safe area 1if needed.

Rules and Regulations 46
Texarkana Regional Airport Authority, Texarkana Regional Airport (10/04/2023)



TEXARKANA AVIATION FUELING
Only designated personnel approved by the Authority, trained in rapid refueling operations, shall operate
the Refueling Vehicle. All doors, windows, and access points allowing entry to the mnterior of the
Rotorcraft which are adjacent to, or in the immediate vicinity of, the fuel inlet ports shall be closed and
shall remain closed during Fuel Handling. Fuel shall be dispensed into an open port from approved type

nozzles, with a flow rate not to exceed 60 gallons per minute or it shall be dispensed through close-
coupled pressure fueling ports.

When fuel is dispensed from fixed piping systems the hose cabinet shall not extend into the rotor space.
The Refueling Vehicle shall be pre-positioned in a designated area and the Rotorcraft will land after the
Refueling Vehicle has been parked and the wheels chocked (maintaining no less than 20 feet between any
Rotorcraft rotating component and the Refueling Vehicle). The Refueling Vehicle shall not be moved or
relocated while the Rotorcraft is on the ground or hovering in the vicinity.

Refueling Vehicles

Retueling Vehicles shall be equipped and maintained to comply with all applicable federal, state, and
local statutes and ordinances including, without limitation, those prescribed by:

# Arkansas Fire Protection Code;

# 14 CFR Part 139, Airport Certification, Section 139.321 “Handling/Stoning of Hazardous
Substances and Materials™; and

» Applicable ACs including AC 00-34A "Aircraft Ground Handling and Servicing" (as

amended) and AC 150/5210-5D "Painting, Marking and Lighting of Vehicles Used on an
Atrport” (as amended).

Refueling Vehicles shall be equipped with metering devices that meet all applicable federal, state, and
local statutes and ordinances and shall be bottom loaded.

Only those fuel storage lacilities and Refueling Vehicles which are approved by the Authority and the
Fire Department shall be used for Fuel Handling. Refueling Vehicles, pumps, meters, hoses, nozzles,
funnels, fire extinguishers, and bonding devices used during Fuel Handling shall be maintained in a safe
operating condition. All hoses, funnels, and appurtenances used in Fuel Handling shall be equipped with a
bonding device to prevent ignition of volatile liquids.

» When Refueling Vehicles are found in a state of disrepair, malfunction, or their use

constitutes an undue fire or safety hazard, or the operation of Refueling Vehicles would

violate these Rules and Regulations, the entity shall immediately discontinue the use of such

Refueling Vehicles until repairs, replacements, or changes are made to render the same safe

for continued use.

Hoses or piping connections shall be secured and capable of holding under the pump’s rated

pound per square inch PSI discharge.

# Hoses or nozzles shall be FM or UL approved with self-closing valve and no hold-down or
hold-open devices. All pumps shall be FM or UL approved.

# All storage tanks shall be rated in accordance with Umiversal Fire Code (UFC) Article 24,
Division Il and Article 79, Division XI1.

L

Refueling Vehicles shall not be operated in reverse unless another person is present to safely monitor and
direct the movement of the Refueling Vehicle., Refueling Vehicles and fuel storage facihities shall be

placarded, marked, or color coded in accordance with the Arkansas Fire Protection Code and applicable
FAA ACs.

Rules and Regulations 47
Texarkana Regional Airport Authority, Texarkana Regional Airport (10/04/2023)



TEXARKANA AVIATION FUELING

» A copy of all applicable permits, registrations, and certificates shall be maintained in each
Refueling Vehicle,

Storage of Refueling Vehicles

Refuehng Vehicles shall be stored outdoors at a distance of at least 50 feet from a buillding or at the
distance approved by the Fire Department unless the building is designed, constructed, and used
exclusively, and approved by the Fire Department specifically for this purpose. Refueling Vehicles shall
be parked in a manner that provides a mimimum of 10 feet of separation between Refueling Vehicles and
any other vehicle or aireraft and a minimum of 20 feet from a storm water inlet.

Maintenance of Refueling Vehicles

Maintenance of Refueling Vehicles shall be performed outdoors or in a building which is approved by the
Fire Department specifically for this purpose. Entities engaged in Fuel Handling shall document and
maintain and keep on file Refueling Vehicle maintenance records. These records shall be made available
to the Authority upon request.

Fuel Storage Facilities

Entities shall be liable and shall defend, indemnify, save, protect, and hold harmless the Authority for all
leaks, spills, or other damage that may result from Fuel Handling. fuel storage facilities shall be operated
and maintained in accordance with the Arkansas Fire Protection Code and in full compliance with federal,
state, and local statutes and ordinances and shall be approved by all Agencies having jurnisdiction. fuel
storage facilities shall be constructed and/or tanks shall be installed in accordance with the Arkansas Fire
Protection Code and in full compliance with federal, state, and local statutes and ordinances. Plans for
installation and operation of fuel storage facilities shall be submitted to the Authority and the Fire
Department and approval shall be received from the Authority and the Fire Department prior to
installation and operation.

# All vehicle and/or pedestrian gates leading into fuel storage facilities shall remain closed,
locked, and secured except when actually in use.

8.2, Non-Commercial Self-Fueling (Jet and Avgas)
Introduction — Any entity engaged in Non-Commercial Self-fueling of jet and avgas shall comply with
this Section and all applicable provisions of Section 8.1 of these Rules and Regulations. Non-Commercial
Selt-Fueling is defined as fueling of an aircratft by the Aircraft Owner or the Owner’s Employee(s) using
the Aircraft Owner’s vehicles, Equipment, and resources.

Permit — No Aircraft Owner or Aircraft Operator shall engage in Self-Fueling unless a valid Non-
Commercial Self-Fueling Permit (Self-Fueling Permit) authorizing such activity has been issued by the
Authority (herein after referred to as Self-Fueling Permittec).

The Self-Fueling Permit shall not reduce or limit Self-Fueling Permittee’s obligations with respect to
these Non-Commercial Self-Fueling rules which shall be included in the Self-Fueling Permit by
reference. Self-Fueling Permittee shall provide evidence of aircraft ownership, lease, or operation (full
and exclusive control).

# If the aircraft 1s being leased or operated by (and under the full and exclusive control of) and
fueled by Self-Fueling Permittee, Self-Fueling Permittee shall provide the Authority with a
copy of the lease or operating agreement.

Rules and Regulations 48
Texarkana Regional Airport Authority, Texarkana Regional Airport (10/04/2023)



TEXARKANA AVIATION FUELING

» The Authority will determine if the lease or operating agreement demonstrates that the Seli-
Fueling Permittee has the full and exclusive control of the aircraft.

Selt-Fueling Permittee shall maintain written records of compliance with all federal, state, and local
statutes and ordinances (including tax or fee payments) for the use of fuel utilized in aircraft and provide
records upon request by the Authority,

Reporting — On or before the 10th day of the subsequent month, Self-Fueling Permittee shall: (a) provide
a summary report to the Authority identifying the number of gallons of aviation fuel by fuel type: (1)
purchased by Self-Fueling Permittee, (ii) delivered to Self-Fueling Permittee’s fuel storage facility, and
(m) dispensed to Self-Fuelhing Permuttee’s amrcraft at the Amrport and (b) pay the appropnate fees due to
the Authority,

Records and meters shall be made available for review by the Authority or its designated representative.
In the case of a discrepancy between the amount of fuel purchased, delivered, or dispensed, the greater
amount shall prevail, and the Self-Fueling Permittee shall promptly pay all additional fees due and owing
the Authority, plus interest on the unpaid balance at the maximum rate allowable by law from the date
originally due.

Operations — Self-Fueling shall be conducted only in those areas designated by the Authority as
identified in the Self-Fueling Permit.

-

7 Self-Fueling at any other location at the Airport is prohibited.
» Pouring or gravity transfer of fuel and fueling from containers having a capacity of more than
5 gallons is prohibited.

Equipment — Self-Fueling Permittee shall utilize a Refueling Vehicle for dispensing fuel into Self-
Fueling Permittee’s aircraft. Refueling Vehicle(s) shall be solely owned, leased, and/or operated by (and
under the full and exclusive control of) the Self-Fueling Permittee. Truck-to-truck fuel transfer is
prohibited.

Self-Fueling Permittee may utilize a single Refueling Vehicle for each tvpe of fuel to be dispensed as
follows:

Refueling Vehicles
Jet Fuel

Minimum capacity (gallons) 1,000
Avgas

Minimum capacity (gallons) 500

-

# Self-Fueling Permittee’s utilizing off Airport fuel storage must park the Refueling Vehicle off
Adirport when not in use.

Fuel Storage Facilities — Self-Fueling Permittee shall demonstrate that satisfactory arrangements have
been made for the storage of fuel, as follows:

» off Airport or
# through Self-Fueling Permittee’s fuel storage facility at the Airport in a location consistent
with the Master Plan, Airport Layout Plan, and/or Land Use Plan and approved by the
Authority.
Rules and Regulations 49

Texarkana Regional Airport Authority, Texarkana Regional Airport (10/04/2023)



TEXARKANA AVIATION FUELING

Self-Fueling Permittee’s authorized by the Authority shall lease land and own or lease an above ground
fuel storage facility in the designated fuel storage area as follows:

Fuel Storage Facility
Jet Fuel
Number of tanks 1
Minimum total capacity (gallons) 8,000
Avgas
Number of tanks I
Minimum total capacity (gzallons) 8,000

Fuel storage facility shall denote the aircraft FAA N-Number(s) identified on the Self-Fueling Permittee’s
Self-Fueling Permut with 12-inch characters on each side of the fuel storage facility.

Limitations — Self-Fueling Permittee shall not sell and/or dispense fuel to aircraft that are not owned,
leased, and/or operated by (and under the full and exclusive control of) Self-Fueling Permittee and
identified to the Authority. Any such selling or dispensing shall be grounds for revocation of the Permit
by the Authority as well as the collection of all applicable fines or other charges.

r-

# Revocation upon first violation will be for a period of one year.
#» Revocation upon a second violation shall be permanent.

Public Service Agency — Entities providing an Emergency Public Service are not required to meet the
fueling equipment and storage facility requirements identified in this Section unless fuel is being
delivered to aircraft by Refueling Vehicles or through a fixed fueling station.

Fuel storage facihities and dehivery of fuel for awrcraft operated by Publhic Service Agency must be
approved in writing, in advance by the Authority.

Insurance — Except as otherwise provided for herein, Non-Commercial Self-Fueling Permittee shall
maintain, at a minimum, the coverage and limits of insurance set forth below:

» General Liability (Combined Single Limit)
e Each occurrence — $1,000,000
e Unlicensed vehicles — $2,000,000
# Business Automobile Liability (Combined Single Limit)
e Non-Movement Area — $1,000,000
o  Movement Area — 52,000,000
»  Environmental Liability — $2,000,000

8.3.  Non-Commercial Self-Fueling (Mogas)

Introduction — Any entity engaged in Non-Commercial Self-Fueling of Mogas (Mogas Self-Fueling)
shall comply with this Section. Non-Commercial Self-Fueling is defined as Fuel Handling of an aircraft
by the Aircraft Owner or the Owner’s Employee(s) using the Aircraft Owner’s vehicles, Equipment, and
Tesources.

Statutes and Ordinances — Fuel Handling shall conform to all applicable federal, state, and local statutes
and ordinances.

Rules and Regulations 50
Texarkana Regional Airport Authority, Texarkana Regional Airport (10/04/2023)



TEXARKANA AVIATION FUELING
Fuel Quality Control- Fuel shall comply with the quality specifications outlined in ASTM D4814

without ethanol (Mogas). Ensuring the quality of the fuel is the sole responsibility of entity engaged in
Fuel Handling. Mogas may not be stored at the Airport.

Training — Persons engaging in Fuel Handling shall possess a valid and current pilot’s license.

Fuel Handling — Aircraft shall not be engaged in Fuel Handling in an area where aircraft engines are
operating, aircraft or engines are being warmed by application of heat, or while the aircraft is located in a
congested area.

All Fuel Handling shall be treated with due caution and circumspection with regard to the rights, safety,
and security of others so as not to endanger, or be likely to endanger, persons or Property. If any
malfunction or irregularity is detected on or within the aircraft, Fuel Handling shall cease immediately,
and the malfunction or irregularity shall be brought to the attention of the Aircraft Owner or Aircraft
Operator immediately. Persons engaged in Fuel Handling shall exercise care and extreme caution to
prevent overflow or spills of fuel or oils.

# Should a fuel or oil spill occur at the Airport, the party responsible shall comply with Section
2.19. of these Rules and Regulations.

Fuel Handling shall be conducted in accordance with the procedures stipulated in the Aircraft Operator’s
Manual. Fuel Handling shall not occur if an electrical storm is in progress within 5 miles of the Airport
and may resume 15 minutes following any reported or observed lightning flash within 5 miles of the
Airport.

Fuel Handling shall not occur while passengers are on board the aircraft. No person shall operate any
cellphone, radio transmitter, or receiver or switch the transmitter or receiver on or off during Fuel
Handling unless said radio transmitter or receiver is designed specifically for such environment.

No person shall operate aircraft electrical systems or switch amrcraft electrical appliances on or off during
Fuel Handling,

» Smoking, vaping, matches, lighters, and open flames (e.g., candles, fixtures, or fires) are
prohibited within 50 feet of any aircraft, Refueling Vehicle, fuel storage facility.

Fire extinguishers shall be immediately available during Fuel Handling to comply with the Arkansas Fire
Protection Code and all fire codes, regulations, or directives issued by the Fire Department and/or the
Authority.

# All extinguishers shall be mspected and certified, as required by law,

The Authority assumes no liability or responsibility for any violation of any aircraft, Refueling Vehicle,
or refueling requirement or procedure, any error, omission, negligence, or any violation of any Legal
Requirement relating to Fuel Handling,

# LEntities engaged in Fuel Handling shall be solely, fully, and completely responsible for any
such violation, error, omission, or negligence incident to or in connection with the entities
fuel storage facilities, Refueling Vehicles, Fuel Handling, and training.

# Entities engaged in Fuel Handling shall fully reimburse the Authority for any fines, legal or
court costs, incurred by the Authority for any such violation, error, omission, or negligence.

Rules and Regulations 51
Texarkana Regional Airport Authority, Texarkana Regional Airport (10/04/2023)



TEXARKANA AVIATION FUELING
Permit — No Aircraft Owner shall engage in Mogas Self-Fueling unless a valid Non-Commercial Self-

Fueling Permut (Self-Fueling Permit) authorizing such activity has been 1ssued by the Authority (herein
after referred to as Self-Fueling Permittee).

The Self-Fueling Permit shall not reduce or limit Self-Fueling Permittee’s obligations with respect to
these Non-Commercial Self-Fueling rules which shall be included mn the Self-Fueling Pernut by
reference. Self-Fueling Permittee shall provide evidence of Aircraft Ownership, lease, or operation (full
and exclusive control).

» If the aircraft is being leased or operated by (and under the full and exclusive control of) and
fueled by Self-Fuelhing Permuttee, Self-Fueling Permittee shall provide the Authority with a
copy of the lease or operating agreement.

#» The Authority will determine if the lease or operating agreement demonstrates that the Self-
Fueling Permittee has the full and exclusive control of the aircrafi.

Selt-Fueling Permittee shall maintain written records of compliance with all federal, state, and local
statutes and ordinances (including tax or fee payments) for the use of fuel utilized in aircraft and provide
records upon request by the Authority.

Reporting — On or before the 10th day of the subsequent month, Self-Fueling Permittee shall: (a) provide
a summary report to the Authorty identifying the number of gallons dispensed to Self-Fueling
Permittee’s aircraft at the Airport and (b) pay the appropriate fees due to the Authority. Records shall be
made available for review by the Authority or its designated representative.

Fueling Operations — Mogas Self-Fueling shall be conducted only in those areas designated by the
Authority as identified in the Self-Fueling Permit.

» Mogas Self-Fueling at any other location at the Airport is prohibited.

¥ Pouring or gravity transfer of fuel and fueling from containers having a capacity of more than
5 gallons 15 prohibited,

#» Hand or power operated pumps shall be used when using drums or other metal containers.

# Hoses shall be approved for flammable liquids and shall be maintained in compliance with

federal, state, and local statutes and ordinances.

Limitations — Self-Fueling Permittee shall not sell and/or dispense Mogas to aircraft that are not owned,
leased, and/or operated by (and under the full and exclusive control of) Selt-Fueling Permittee and
identified to the Authority. Any such selling or dispensing shall be grounds for revocation of the Permit
by the Authority as well as the collection of all applicable fines or other charges.

» Revocation upon first violation will be for a pertod of one vear,

=,

» Revocation upon second violation shall be permanent.

8.4. Commercial Self-Serve Fueling
Introduction — Entities using a Commercial self-serve fuel pump shall comply with this Section and all
applicable provisions of Section 8.1. of these Rules and Regulations

Training — No person shall engage in Fuel Handling until that person is trained or possesses a valid and
current pilot’s license.

Rules and Regulations 52
Texarkana Regional Airport Authority, Texarkana Regional Airport (10/04/2023)



TEXARKANA APPENDIX A — PMCD GENERAL PROVISIONS

9. APPENDIX A — PMCD GENERAL PROVISIONS
A-1.  Purpose

The PMCD General Provisions set forth in this section are common to all PMCDs and are incorporated into
each PMCD by reference.

A-2. Authority of Airport Sponsor and Governing Body

The authority to implement, supplement, amend, or adopt any policy, standard, rule, regulation, or
directive, including the PMCDs, is delegated to the Authority by the Arkansas Code Annotated Title 14
Local Government, Subtitle 22 Airport Facilities Generally, Chapter 22 County and Municipal Airports,
Section 22.073 Additional Authorization,

The authority to: (a) lease Airport land and/or Improvements, (b) allow the occupancy and/or
development of Airport land or Improvements, and (c) grant the right to engage in any activity at the
Adrport 1s expressly reserved to the Authority by and through the Authority Board.

A-3.  Applicability
Provisions of the PMCDs apply within the defined boundaries of the Airport as illustrated in the Airport
Layout Plan (ALP) and include all access roads on the Airport.

A-4.  Statement of Policy

It is the desire of the Authority to: (a) plan, develop, operate, and manage the Airport in such a manner to
ensure the Airport’s long-term financial health, (b) protect and promote the health, safety, security, and
general welfare of the public, and (¢) encourage the provision of the type, level, and quality of General
Aviation products, services, and facilities desired by the public.

For situations not specifically addressed in the PMCDs, the Authority reserves the right to make such
policies, standards, rules, regulations, and directives as may be appropriate given the situation and/or
circumstances pertaining to the use of the Airport.

The Airport is required to operate for the use and benefit of the public and shall be made available to all
tvpes, kinds, and classes of Aeronautical Activity on reasonable terms and without unjust discrimination.

A-3, Non-Discrimination

No person, in the use of the Airport’s land and Improvements, shall discriminate aganst any person or
class of persons because of race, color, national origin, religion, sex (including pregnancy and gender
identity), genetic information, age, disability, sexual orientation in providing any products or services or
in the use of any of the Airport’s land and Improvements provided for the public, or in any manner
prohibited by applicable federal, state, and local statutes and ordinances.

A-6.  Airport Management

The Director i1s responsible for the planning, development, operation, administration, management,
maintenance, and security of the Airport and all Authority owned and operated land, Improvements,
facilities, vehicles, and equipment associated with the Airport. The Authority Board has authorized the
Director to: (a) interpret, administer, and enforce Agreements and the PMCDs, (b) allow, where and when
appropriate, temporary, short-term occupancy or use of Airport land or improvements, and (¢) obtain and
receive copies of all licenses, permits, certifications, ratings, certificates of insurance, and other
documents required to be provided to the Authority. All inquiries regarding the PMCDs and/or
compliance therewith shall be directed to the Director.

A-7.  Effective Date

Rules and Regulations 53
Texarkana Regional Airport Authority, Texarkana Regional Awrport (10/04/2023)



TEXARKANA APPENDIX A — PMCD GENERAL PROVISIONS

The PMCDs shall be in effect and shall remain in effect from the date of adoption by the Authority,
unless repealed by the Authority.

A-8.  Compliance with Statutes, Ordinances, and Agreements

All entities leasing, occupying, and/or developing Airport land and/or Improvements and/or engaging in
an Aeronautical Activity at the Airport shall comply, at the entity’s sole cost and expense, with all
applicable federal, state, and local statutes and ordinances.

No Agreement, nor any payment or performance required there under, shall excuse any entity from
compliance with the PMCDs. Compliance with the PMCDs shall not excuse any responsibility or
obligation an entity may have to the Authority under any existing Agreement.

A-9.  Conflicting Statutes, Ordinances, and Agreements

If any provision of the PMCDs is found to conflict with any other Authority policy, standard, rule,
regulation, or directive; any provision of any applicable Legal Requirement; or any provision of an
Agreement (if provided for in the Agreement), the provision that establishes the higher or stricter standard
shall prevail to the extent permitted by law.

A-10. Right to Self-Service

An Aircraft Owner or the Aircraft Owner’s Employees may perform Self-Services (fueling, maintenance, or
repair) on the Aircraft Owner’s aircraft utilizing the Aircraft Owner’s vehicles, equipment, and resources
(Self-Service). An Aircraft Owner or the Aircraft Owner’s Emplovees are permitted to perform such Self-
Services on the Aircraft Owner’s aircraft provided there is no attempt to perform such services for others
and further provided that such right is conditioned upon compliance with the PMCDs and all applicable
federal, state, and local statutes and ordinances.

If the right to Self-Service is not exercised, an Aircraft Owner is only permitted to have the Aircraft
Owner’s aircraft fueled, maintained, repaired, or otherwise serviced at the Airport by those Operators
authorized to engage in such Commercial Activities at the Airport.

An Operator may restrict the use of its exclusive Leased Premises for Self-Service activities.

Section does not apply to persons utilizing a Commercial self-serve fueling facility as provided in Section
8.4 of these Rules and Regulations.,

A-11.  Prohibited Activities
Through-the-Fence activities are prohibited at the Airport.

A-12.  Fines or Penalties

Entities shall have the responsibility to pay any fine or penalty levied against entity, the Authority, or the
Authority Board individually or collectively, as a result of entity's failure to comply with any applicable
Legal Requirement. If the fine or penalty 1s contested, entity shall pay the fine or penalty if upheld by the
Agency having jurisdiction.

A-13.  Severability

If any provision of the PMCDs shall be held to be unlawful, invalid, or unenforceable by final judgment

of any Agency or court of competent jurisdiction, the judgment shall not in any way atfect the validity of
any other provisions of the PMCDs,

Rules and Regulations 54
Texarkana Regional Airport Authority, Texarkana Regional Awrport (10/04/2023)



TEXARKANA APPENDIX A — PMCD GENERAL PROVISIONS
A-14.  Subordination
The PMCDs are subject and subordinate to the provisions of any agreement between the Authority and

the State of Arkansas or the Umited States Government pertainming to the planning, development,
operation, and management of the Airport.

The Authority recognizes the jurisdiction of the federal government, delegated to the FAA, concerning
the licensing and regulation of pilots, air carriers, and aircraft; and concerming the navigable airspace. The
PMCDs are not intended to assert jurisdiction by the Authority over matters under the exclusive
Jurisdiction of the federal government, and the provisions of the PMCDs shall be interpreted consistent
with this purpose.

A-15.  Notices, Requests for Approval, Applications, and Other Filings

Any notice, request for approval, application, or other filing required or permitted to be given or filed
with the Authority and any notice or communication required or permitted to be given or filed with any
existing or prospective Operator, Lessee, or Sublessee pursuant to the PMCDs shall be in writing, signed
by the party giving such notice, and shall be sent by overnight courier, United States certified mail,
facsimile (confirmed by dated return signature), email (confirmed by return email), or n person
(confirmed by dated and signed receipt). Such notice, request for approval, application, or other filing
shall be deemed to have been given when delivered to the Authority or existing or prospective Operator,
Lessee, or Sublessee at its principal place of business or such other address as may have been provided.
Operator, Lessee, or Sublessee shall provide notice to the Authority of a change of address within 14
calendar days of change of address.

A-16, Amendments

The PMCDs may be supplemented, amended, or modified from time to time and in such a manner and to
such extent as deemed appropriate or necessary by the Authority Board. The Authority Board may
provide for public notification of pending supplements, amendments, or modifications to the PMCDs to
provide the opportunity for public comment. The Authority Board may issue emergency policies,
standards, rules, regulations, or directives from time to time,

A-17.  Variance or Exemption

The Authority Board may, but is not obligated to, approve variances or exemptions to the PMCDs when
special conditions or unique circumstances exist. Requests for variance or exemption shall be submitted
in writing to the Director and must state:

#  the specific PMCD provision(s) for which the variance or exemption is being sought,

# describe the proposed variance or exemption, state the reason for the proposed variance or
exemption;

# identify the anticipated impact on the Airport (and other entities including Operators,
Lessees, Sublessees, users of the Awrport, and the public); and

# 1dentify the duration of the proposed variance or exemption.

Prior to the Authority Board approving or denying a variance or exemption, the Authority shall conduct a
review of all relevant information. Approval or denial by the Authority Board of a variance or exemption
shall be reasonable, not unjustly discriminatory, and consistent with prior decisions involving similar
conditions or circumstances at the Airport (if any) and shall be provided in writing within 90 calendar
days from the receipt of the written request.

Rules and Regulations 55
Texarkana Regional Airport Authority, Texarkana Regional Awrport (10/04/2023)



TEXARKANA APPENDIX A — PMCD GENERAL PROVISIONS
» An approved variance or exemption shall not serve to amend, modify, or alter the PMCDs or
any existing Agreement,

#» Requests for variance or exemption can be denied in accordance with Appendix A-18 of
these Rules and Regulations.

A-18.  Possible Grounds for Rejecting Application, Variance, or Exemption
In this section, the term “activity” 15 inclusive of all Commercial Aeronautical Activities, Non-
Commercial Aeronautical Activities, and non-aeronautical activities.

The Authority may reject any application, request for variances or exemption, assignment, change in
majority ownership, encumbrance, or application for any one or more of the following reasons (as
determined in the sole discretion of the Authority).

# The entity, for any reason, does not fully meet the qualifications, standards, and requirements
established by the Authority. The burden of proof shall be on the entity and the standard of
proof shall be by clear and convinecing evidence.

#» The Authority or the FAA has determined that the proposed activity and/or Improvement
would create a safety or security risk or constitute a Hazard, obstruction, or danger to air
navigation.

# The Authority would be required to expend funds and/or supply labor and/or materials in

connection with the proposed activity and/or Improvement that the Authority is unwilling

and/or unable to expend or supply.

The financial plan associated with the proposed activity and/or Improvement is not realistic

and attainable and/or will result in a financial operating loss or hardship for the entity.

# No appropriate, adequate, or available land and/or Improvement exists at the Airport to
accommaodate the proposed activity or Improvement at the time the proposal or application is
submitted, nor is such availability contemplated within a reasonable period.

# The proposed activity and/or Improvement do not comply with the ALP currently in effect or
anticipated to be in effect.

» The entity’s occupancy, use, or development of Airport land and/or Improvements could be
detrimental to the public, result in congestion of arcraft, and/or negatively impact the safety
and/or efficiency of the Airport, Operators, Lessees, Sublessees, or users of the Airport.

# The entity intentionally or unintentionally misrepresented or failed to disclose material fact in
a proposal, in an application, and/or in supporting documentation.

Y

» The entity or any officer, director, agent, representative, shareholder, or key employee thereof
has a record of violating the federal, state, and local statutes and ordinances of the Authority,
any other airport sponsor, the State of Arkansas, the FAA, or any other Legal Requirement
applicable to the Airport and/or the entity’s proposed activity or Improvement.

» The entity or any officer, director, agent, representative, shareholder, or key employee thereof

has defaulted in the performance of any Agreement or agreement or sublease at any other
airport.
# The entity does not exhibit adequate financial capability, capacity, or responsibility to
undertake and sustain the proposed activity or Improvement.
The entity cannot obtain a bond or insurance in the type and amounts required by the
Authority for the proposed activity.
# The Entity or an officer, director, or shareholder has been convicted of a felony.,

Y

Rules and Regulations 56
Texarkana Regional Airport Authority, Texarkana Regional Awrport (10/04/2023)



TEXARKANA APPENDIX A — PMCD GENERAL PROVISIONS
» The entity seeks terms and conditions which are inconsistent with the PMCDs and/or any
request for qualifications and/or proposals (or any other document) 1ssued by the Authority.
# The entity’s interests and/or the proposed activity or Improvement are inconsistent with the
mission, vision, values, goals, or objectives of the Airport; the best interest of the Authority;
or any Airport Sponsor Assurances.

# The entity has been party to vexatious or frivolous litigation, including, without limitation,
administrative litigation, against the Authority.

A-19.  Enforcement

The Director i1s empowered by the Authority to require compliance with and enforce the PMCDs. The
Fire Department is authorized to enforce all fire and Hazardous Materials related federal, state, and local
statutes and ordinances (within jurisdiction). Law Enforcement Officers are authorized to enforce all
federal, state, and local statutes and ordinances (within jurisdiction).

Representatives of the Authority, as designated by the Director, shall enforce these Rules and
Regulations. Any person or entity who violates these Rules and Regulations may be cited, removed from
the Airport, demied use of the Airport, and/or prevented from engaging in Activities at the Airport and
shall be subject to all legal, equitable, statutory, and common law rights and remedies available to the
Authority.

A-20. Appeals

Any party aggrieved by a decision of airport management may appeal (in writing) such decision to the
Director within 14 calendar days after such decision 15 1ssued. Any claim not timely submitted to the
Director 1s waived.

# The Director shall respond to such written claim within 30 calendar days of the receipt of the
claim by either (a) making a written determination with respect to the ¢laim, or (b) making a
written request for additional information. If requested, the party shall provide all requested
additional information within 14 calendar days of the date of the Director’s request, or the
claim 1s waived. Thereafter, the Director shall make a written determination with respect to
the claim within 30 calendar days after receipt of the additional information. In either case,
the Director’s written determination shall be final and conclusive unless within 30 calendar
days from the date of the Director’s written determination, the party requests, in writing, an
appeal to the Authority Board stating specifically all grounds of appeal.

The Authority Board shall use its best efforts to hear any such appeal within 120 calendar days after the
Authority Board’s receipt of the written appeal. At such hearing, the party shall be afforded such
opportunity to be heard and to offer relevant evidence in support of its appeal, as may be determined by
the Authority Board in its sole discretion.

A-21.  Rights and Privileges Reserved
In this section, the term “activity” 1s inclusive of all Commercial Aeronautical Activities, Non-
Commercial Aeronautical Activities, and non-aeronautical activities.

In addition to the following enumerated reserved rights and privileges, the Authority reserves all the
rights and privileges outlined under federal and/or state Airport Sponsor Assurances as such rights and
privileges may be amended from time to time.

Rules and Regulations 57
Texarkana Regional Airport Authority, Texarkana Regional Awrport (10/04/2023)



TEXARKANA APPENDIX A — PMCD GENERAL PROVISIONS
» Nothing contained within the PMCDs shall be construed to limit the use of any area of the
Airport by the Authority (and its representatives, officers, officials, employees, agents, and
volunteers) or to prevent any FAA, DHS, TSA, Law Enforcement Officer, or Fire
Department personnel from acting in official capacities.

» The Authority reserves the right for the use of the Airport by others pursuant to applicable

federal, state, and local statutes and ordinances pertaining to the Airport and such use.

» The Authority reserves the right to designate specific Airport areas for activities in
accordance with the currently approved ALP. Such designation shall consider the nature and
extent of current and/or future activities and the land and/or Improvements that may be
available and/or used for specific activities and shall be consistent with the safe. secure,
orderly, and efficient use of the Airport.

It is the policy of the Authority that any occupancy, use, and/or development (construction or

modification) of land and/or Improvements that is inconsistent with the ALP 1s undesirable.

Any development that is substantially different than that depicted on the ALP could adversely

affect the safe, secure, orderly, or efficient use of the Airport. Nothing contained in the

PMCDs shall require or obligate the Authority to apply to the FAA for approval of the

revision of the ALP on behalf of a current or prospective Operator, Lessee, Sublessee, or user

of the Airport.

# The Authority reserves the right to develop and make any Improvements and/or repairs at the
Airport that 1t deems necessary, Except in cases determined by the Authority to constitute an
emergency, the Authority will provide advance notice of the date and time to impacted parties
that such development, improvements, and/or repairs will be made. The Authority shall not
be obligated to reimburse or compensate any Operator, Lessee, Sublessee, or other entity for
any cost and/or expense incurred, loss of revenue, or inconvenience that may result from such
development, improvement, and/or repair

# The Authority reserves the right to prohibit any Entity from using the Airport, engaging in
activities at the Airport, and/or revoke or suspend any privileges granted to any Lessee,
Sublessee, Operator, Permittee, or User upon determination by the Authority that such
Lessee, Sublessee, Operator, Permittee, or User has not comphed with these Rules and
Regulations, or has otherwise jeopardized the safety or security of Entities or the land and/or
Improvements located at the Airports.

# The Authority (and its representatives, officers, officials, employees, agents, and volunteers)
shall not be responsible for loss, injury, or damage to persons or Property at the Airport
related in any way to any natural disaster or illegal activity.

# The Authority reserves the right to prohibit any entity from using the Airport, engaging in
activitics at the Airport, and/or revoke or suspend any privileges granted to any Lessee,
Sublessee, Operator, Permittee, or user upon determination by the Authority that such Lessee,
Sublessee, Operator, Permittee, or user has not complied with the PMCDs, or has otherwise
jeopardized the safety or security of entities or the land and/or Improvements located at the
Alrport.

W

Rules and Regulations 58
Texarkana Regional Airport Authority, Texarkana Regional Awrport (10/04/2023)



TEXARKANA APPENDIX A — PMCD GENERAL PROVISIONS
#» During time of war or national emergency, the Authority shall have the right to enter into an
agreement with the United States Government for military use of part or all of the landing
area, the publicly owned air navigation facilities, and/or other land and Improvements of the
Airport. If any such agreement is executed, any agreement, insofar as it is inconsistent with
the agreement between the Authority and the United States Government, shall be suspended,

without any liability on the part of the Authority.

» The Authority will not relinquish the right to take any action the Authority considers
necessary to protect the aerial approaches of the Airport against obstruction or to prevent a
person from erecting or permitting to be erected any facility or other structure which might
limit the usefulness of the Airport or constitute a hazard to aircraft.

# The Authority will not waive any sovereign, governmental, or other immunity to which the

Authority may be entitled, nor shall any provision of any Agreement be so construed.

The Authority will not submit to the laws of any state other than those of the State of
Arkansas.

# The Authority is under no obligation to provide financing and/or make any improvements to
Airport land and/or Improvements to facilitate any development or consummate any proposed
Agreement. In addition, the Authority is under no obligation to: (a) pursue federal, state, or
other funds to contribute to such development or (b) provide matching funds to secure such
funding.

The Authority reserves the right to take such actions as it may deem necessary, appropriate,
and/or in the best interest of the Authority including preserving the assets of the Authority
and the Airport, protecting the safety and security of the people who work at and/or use the
Airport, and maintaining the integrity of the Authority’s mission, vision, values, goals and
objectives for the Authority and the Airport.

LK

"‘_:-'

Rules and Regulations 59
Texarkana Regional Airport Authority, Texarkana Regional Awrport (10/04/2023)



o

TEXARKANA

APPENDIX B - PMCD DEFINITIONS AND ACRONYMS

10. APPENDIX B — PMCD DEFINITIONS AND ACRONYMS

B-1.  Definitions
Abandoned —~ Property, other than aircraft or vehicles,
that has been voluntarily given up by the owner and
left at the Airport for 48 hours without the owner
moving or claiming it.

Accident — A collision or other contact between any
part of an aircraft, wvehicle, equipment. person,
stationary ohject and/or other thing which results in
Property damage, personal injury, or death; or an entry
into or emergence from a moving aircraft, vehicle, or
equipment by a person which results in personal injury
or death to such person or some other person or which
results in Property damage,

Aeronautical Activity (Activity) — Any activity or
service that involves, makes possible, facilitates, 1s

related to, assists in, or 1s required for the operation of
aircratt. Any activity which contributes to, or is
required for, the safety of such operations. Any
activities which have a direct relationship to the
operation of aircraft or the operation of the Airport.

Aftiliate — Any entity that shall directly or indirectly
control, be under the control of, or be under common
control with Operator. Control for these purposes shall
mean the direct and indirect ownership of 50% or
more of the outstanding voting stock of a corporation
or 50% or more equity or controlling interest if not a
corporation,

Agency — Any federal, state, or local governmental
entity, unit, organization, or authority,

Agreement — A written contract (e.g.. lease agreement,
license agreement, permit, etc.), enforceable by law,
executed by both parties, between the Authority and
entity transferring rights or interest in land and/or
Improvements and/or otherwise authorizing the
conduct of certain activities.

Adar Carrier — An entity engaged in the operation of an
aircraft for the purpose of transporting passengers,
mail, express, treight, or cargo, on a scheduled or non-
scheduled basis, whose operation is either intrastate or
interstate,

Air Operations Area (AOA) — A portion of an airport
which includes aircraft Movement Areas, Ramps, and

safety areas, and any adjacent areas that are not
separated by adequate security systems, measures, or
procedures.

Rules and Regulations

Adrcraft and Passenger Liability — Insurance coverage

pertaining to bodily injury, Property damage, and
passenger injury for all owned, leased, or operated
aircraft.

Adrcraft Accident — An occurrence associated with the

operation of an aircraft that takes place between the
time any person boards the aircraft with the intention
of flight and all such persons have disembarked, and
in which any person suffers death or serious injury, or
in which the aircraft receives substantial damage (as
described in 49 CFR 830).

Aircraft Design Group — A FAA designated grouping
of aircraft based upon wingspan. The groups are as
follows:

Group 1: Up to but not including 49 feet

Group I1: 49 feet up to but not including 79 feet
Group I11: 79 feet up to but not including 118 feet
Group IV: 118 feet up to but not including 171 feet
Group V: 171 feet up to but not including 214 feet
Group VI: 214 teet up to but not including 262 feet

Adreraft Incident — An occurrence other than an

Adrcraft Accident that affects or could affect the safety
of operations (as described in 49 CFR. 830).

Aiarcraft Line Maintenance — Aircraft Maintenance
typically required to return an aircraft to service
within a short period of time. Examples include, but

are not limited to: replenishing lubricants, fluids,
nitrogen, and oxygen; servicing of landing gear, tires,
and struts; lubricating aircraft components; and
avionics/instrument removal and/or replacement.

Aircraft Maintenance — The repair., maintenance,
alteration, calibration, adjustment, preservation, or
inspection of aircraft airframe, powerplant, propeller,
and accessories (including the replacement of parts) as
described in 14 CFR Part 43,

Aircraft Operator — A person who uses, causes to be
used, or authorizes to be used an aircraft, with or
without the right of legal control (as Owner, lessee, or
otherwise) for the purpose of air navigation including
the piloting of arcraft or the operation of aircraft on

any part of the surface of an airport.

Adrcraft Owner — The registered legal Owner of an
aircralt according to FAA records.

60

Texarkana Regional Airport Authority, Texarkana Regional Airport (10/04/2023)



o

TEXARKANA

Airframe _and Powerplant  Mechanic (A & P
Mechanic) — A person who holds an aircraft mechanic
certificate with both airframe and powerplant ratings.
This certification is issued by the FAA under the
provisions of 14 CFR Part 65,

Airport — All land, Improvements, and appurtenances
within the legal boundaries as it now exists on the
ALP (or Exhibit A of the most recent FAA grant) and
as 1t may hereinafter be modified at Texarkana
Regional Airport (TXK).

Aarport Layout Plan (ALP) — The FAA approved
drawing, as may be amended from time to time, which
reflects an agreement between the FAA and Authority
depicting the physical layvout of an airport and

identitying the location and configuration of current
and proposed Runways, Taxiways, buildings,
roadways, utilities, navaids, etc.

Airport Security Badge — A media allowing access to

certain parts of the Airport.

Airport Security Program (ASP) — The current Airport
Security Program, as may be amended from time to
time, approved by the Transportation  Security

Administration (if necessary), that specifies the
systems, measures, and procedures that are used to

meet  an  airport’s  regulatory  and  statutory
responsibilities relating to airport security,
Aarport  Sponsor  Assurances — Those contractual

obligations that are described by law in 49 U.S.C.
47107 and are undertaken by a public airport sponsor
as a conditton of receipt of federal airport
development grants or federal surplus Property.

Airside — The Runways for landing and taking off of
aircraft, designated helipads, Taxiways and Taxilanes
for ground movement of aircraft, and Ramp for
parking, loading, unloading, fueling, and servicing of
aircraft.

Applicant — An entity desiring to use land and/or
Improvements at the Aimrport to engage in an
Aeronautical Activity and who shall apply in writing
and in the manner or form prescribed herein for
authorization to engage in such Activities at the
Adrport.

Rules and Regulations

APPENDIX B - PMCD DEFINITIONS AND ACRONYMS

Association — An entity legally formed and recognized

under the laws of the State of Arkansas having an
existence separate and apart from its members or
shareholders  (e.g., Limited Liability Company,
Corporation, Partnership, Limited Partnership, ete.).

Based Aircraft — An aircraft identified in an
Agreement with the Authority or in a Sublease with an
FBO or SAS0.

Business Automobile Liability — Insurance coverage

pertaining to bodily injury and Property damage for all
licensed vehicles arising out of (or relating to) the use.
loading, and unloading of owned, non-owned, or hired
vehicles.

Capital Investment — Any Authority approved

expenditure made by a Lessee to: (a) the Lessee’s
Leased Premises which will, at the end of the term of
the Agreement, revert to the Authority and/or (b)
Aarport Infrastructure which will immediately revert
to the Authority.

Certified Flight Instructor (CFI) Professional Liability
— Insurance coverage pertaining to bodily imjury and
property  damage not  only during  dual  fhight

instruction, but also after instruction has been given.

Certificates of Insurance — A certificate provided by
and executed by an  insurance company o the
Authority  providing evidence of the insurance

coverages and policy limits.

City of Texarkana, Arkansas Police Department
(Police Department) — The City of Texarkana,
Arkansas  Police
enforcement services as well as several other
community services to the Authority.

Department  provides  law

Co-Op fueling — The fueling of an aircraft by the

Owner of the aircraft or the Owner’s Emplovee using

vehicles, Equipment, and resources owned by an
approved Association.

Commercial — For the purpose of securing earnings,
income, Compensation (including exchange or barter
of goods and services). and/or profit.

Commercial General Liability — Insurance coverage
pertaining to bodily injury, personal injury, Property
damage, contractual hability, products and completed
operations and, if applicable, use of unlicensed
vehicles that in any way arise from the use of the
Leased Premises and operations or Activities of the

61

Texarkana Regional Airport Authority, Texarkana Regional Airport (10/04/2023)



o

TEXARKANA

entity. Unlicensed vehicles operated on the Movement
Area will require coverage in an amount not less than
that identified for combined single limit  per
occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury, and
Property damage.

Compensation — Any form of reimbursement for
goods or services such as monetary, exchange, barter,
favors, gratuity, etc.

Competitive Proposal Process — A process that is used

to seek competitive proposals from qualified entities
when land and/or Improvements are or become
available at the Airport for occupancy or use.

Condemnation - The taking of land and/or

Improvements for any public or quasi-public use
under any Legal Requirement or by the right of
eminent domain.

Contiguous ~ Land and/or apron that shares an edge or

boundary or is separated by no more than a Taxilane.

Courtesy  Vehicle — A wvehicle used to transport
persons, baggage, or goods, or any combination
thereof, on the Airport or between the Airport and off-
airport locations such as hotels, motels, or other

attractions for which no charge is levied (no
Compensation is paid),

Current — All rents, fees, and other charges required to
be paid under any and all Agreements are paid in full.

Drop Zone - intended parachute landing area.

Emergency Public Service — Services provided to the

general public including law enforcement (police),
fire, rescue, and emergency medical or ambulatory
transportation.

Emergency Vehicle - Vehicle of any Agency
providing law enforcement, fire protection, rescue,
emergency medical or ambulatory transportation, or

any vehicle conveying an Airport official or an
Adrport employee in response to an emergency call.

Employee — Any individual emploved by an entity
whereby said entity collects and pays all associated
taxes on behalf of Employee. The determination of
status  between an Employee and an  independent
contractor shall be made according to current RS
codes.

Rules and Regulations

APPENDIX B - PMCD DEFINITIONS AND ACRONYMS

Environmental Liability ~ Insurance coverage

pertaining to liability for bodily injury, Property
damage, and environmental damage resulting from
sudden and accidental releases of pollution and
covering related or  resultant  cleanup  and/or
remediation costs arising out of the occupancy and use
of the Leased Premises.

Equipment — All Property and machinery, together
with the necessary supplies, tools, and apparatus
necessary for the proper conduct of the Activity being
performed.

Exclusive Right — A power, privilege, or other right
excluding or preventing another from enjoying or
exercising a like power, privilege, or right. An

Exclusive Right may be conferred either by express
agreement, by imposition of unreasonable standards or
requirements, or by any other means. Such a right
conferred on one or more parties, but excluding others
from enjoving or exercising a similar right or rights,
would be an Exclusive Right. An Exclusive Right to
conduct an Aeronautical Activity, which is forbidden
by federal regulation, is distinguished from an
Exclusive Right to occupy real estate, which is
permitted by federal regulation under certain
conditions.

Executive Director (Director) — That person (or
designated representative thereof), appointed by the
Authority, responsible for the administration and day-
to-day operation and management of the Airport, all
Authority owned Property, wvehicles, equipment,
material, financial assets, and Employees at the
Airport, and all employees assigned to the Airport.

Fixed Based Operator (FBO) — A Commercial
Operator engaged in the sale of products and services
and the renting or subleasing of facilities consistent
with the Authority’s Minimum Standards.

Fuel Handling — The transporting, delivering, fueling,
dispensing. or draining of fuel or fuel waste products.

General Aviation — All aviation with exception of Air
Carriers and the military.

Good Standing — Full compliance with all applicable
federal, state, and local statutes and ordinances

and not in default of any Agreement with the
Authority.

Hangar — Any fully or partially enclosed storage
facility for an aircraft.

62

Texarkana Regional Airport Authority, Texarkana Regional Airport (10/04/2023)



o

TEXARKANA

Hangar Keeper’s Legal Liability — Insurance coverage

pertaining to Property damage for all non-owned
aircraft under the care, custody, and control of the
Operator,

Hazardous Matenals — A hazardous or toxic

substance, material, or waste which 1s or becomes
regulated by any Agency.

Immediate  Family Individual with any of the
following relationships to tenant: (1) spouse and

parents thereot, (2) sons and daughters, and spouses
thereof, (3) parents, and spouses thereof, (4) brothers
and sisters, and spouses thereof, (5) grandparents and
grandchildren, and spouses thereof, and (6) domestic
partner and parents thereof, mmcluding any domestic
partners of any individuals in Items (2) through (35) of
this definition.

Immediately — The ability to occupy Leased Premises
and offer products, services, and/or facilities (to the

public) on the effective date of the Agreement. When
construction and/or alteration of facilities are
involved, immediately shall mean the ability to obtain
a certificate of occupancy from the authorizing
Agency for the proposed faciliies within 1% months
following the possession of the Leased Premises.

Improvements — All buildings, structures, additions,
and facilities  including pavement, fencing, and
landscaping constructed, installed, or placed on,

under, or above any land on the Airport.

Independent  Operator —  An  entity  offering
acronautical service(s) but without an established
place of business on the Airport.

Infrastructure — Runways, Taxiways, Taxilanes,
Ramps, navaids, airport roadways, utilities, etc,

Landside — The portion of the Airport used for
activities other than the movement of aircraft, such as
vehicle access roads and parking.

Land Use Plan — A document approved by the FAA as
part of the ALP used to gude land use surrounding the
Alrport.

Law Enforcement Officer — A public-sector employee
or agent charged with upholding the peace who is
empowered to effect an arrest with or without warrant
and who 1s authorized to carry a firearm in the
performance of that person's duties.

Rules and Regulations

APPENDIX B - PMCD DEFINITIONS AND ACRONYMS

Leasing Policy — PMCD that sets forth the parameters
for leasing Airport land and Improvements, as may be
amended from time to time,

Leased Premises — The land and/or Improvements
used exclusively under Agreement by a Lessee.

Lessee — An entity that has entered into an Agreement
to  occupy, wuse, and/or develop land and/or
Improvements.

Light Aircraft — Aircraft having a maximum takeoff
weight of 12,500 pounds or less.

Light Sport Aircraft — An aircraft certificated by the
FAA. which is restricted by maximum takeoff weight,
maximum operating airspeeds, maximum seating
capacity, engine and related controls type (if
powered), and type of landing gear.

Limousine — A vehicle, for hire, that 1s not configured
with a taximeter. Transportation services using
limousines are provided for unmetered predetermined
rates.

Loitering — Remaining in an area for no obvious
reason or not being able to give a satistactory

explanation of one’s presence in an area.

Lost Property — Property that has been involuntanly or
unintentionally dropped or left without an intent to

abandon 1t.

Master Plan — An assembly of documents and
drawings (which have been approved by the FAA and
adopted by the Authority) covering the development

ot the Airport from a physical, economic, social, and
political jurisdictional perspective. The Airport Layout
Plan 1s part of the Master Plan.

Minimum_Standards — PMCD that sets forth those
qualifications, standards, and criteria set forth as the
minimum requirements to be met as a condition for

the right to engage in Activities at the Airport, as may
be amended from time to time,

Mogas -~ Unleaded motor gasoline meeting the
specifications of ASTM D4814 which 1s utilized to
power piston-engine aircraft  with an  original
airworthiness  certificate or  Supplemental  Type
Certificate (STC) authorizing use of unleaded motor
gasoline.

63

Texarkana Regional Airport Authority, Texarkana Regional Airport (10/04/2023)



o

TEXARKANA

Movement Area — The Runways, Taxiways, and other

areas of the Airport which are utilized for taxiing,
hover taxiing, takeoff, and landing of aircraft
(exclusive of aircraft parking, loading, unloading,
fueling, and servicing areas) where aircraft are moved
with radio contact with ATC or other aircraft. The
Movement Area includes all areas under the direct and
positive control of ATC, Specific approval for entry
onto the movement area must be obtained from ATC,

Non-Commercial — Not for the purpose of securing

earnings, income, Compensation (including exchange
or barter of goods and services), and/or profit.

Non-Commercial Lessee — An entity that either owns
or leases and operates aircraft for private purposes. In
the case of a business, the operation of aircraft must
be an ancillary activity to support the business's
purposes by providing private transportation for the
exclusive use of its Employees, agents, and/or
customers. In all cases, the Non-Commercial Lessee
neither offers nor engages in  Commercial

Aeronautical Activities.

Non-Commercial Flying Club — An entity that is
legally formed as a non-profit entity with the State of

Arkansas that collectively owns and operates aircraft
and restricts membership from the public.

Non-Movement Area — Those portions of the Airport
where arrcraft taxi or are moved without radio contact
with ATC or other aircraft.

Notice _to AirMission (NOTAM) - Guidelines
regarding acronautical operations issued by a
representative of the FAA, Airport Operations, ATC,
or other authorized Agency.

Object Free Area (OFA) - An arca on the ground
centered on a Runway, Taxiway, or Taxilane
centerline provided to enhance the safety of aircraft
operations by having the area free of object, except for
objects that need to be in the Object Free Area for air
navigation or aircraft ground maneuvering purposes.

Obstacle Free Zone (OFZ) — A defined volume of

airspace centered above the Runway centerline

extending 200 feet beyond each end of the Runway.

Operator — An entity that has entered into an
Agreement to engage in Commercial Aeronautical
Activities at the Airport.

Rules and Regulations

APPENDIX B - PMCD DEFINITIONS AND ACRONYMS

Passenger Terminal Building — The building at an
airport where the passenger processes of ticketing,

baggage check-in, security screening, aircraft
boarding, baggage claim, customs, and immigration
are accomplished for Commercial Air  Carmier
activities.

Participant — Persons paying a fee to an Operator and
subsequently participating in Commercial Skvdiving.

Paved — Covered with asphalt or concrete that forms a
firm level surface.

Permitiee — An entity who has entered into an
Agreement to conduct an Activity at the Airport,

Primary  Management  Compliance  Documents
(PMCDs) — A compendium of rules, regulations,

standards, and policies that govern the development,
operation, and management of the Airport, adopted by
resolution of the Authority, as may be amended from

time to time, including Rules and Regulations,
Standards,  and

Leasing  Policy, Minimum

Development Standards.

Private  Vehicle Any  wvehicle operated for
transportation of persons or baggage for which no
revenue is being derived either directly or indirectly.

Property — Any tangible or intangible possession that
is owned by an entity or a person.

Public _Area — Those areas normally used by the
public. Such areas include concessionaire shops,
restrooms,  Passenger Terminal  Building  lobbies,
hallways, passageways, public transportation waiting
areas, viewing areas, roadways, walkways, sidewalks,
and vehicle parking lots. Public areas do not include
the areas owned and/or leased by Commercial
businesses unless such businesses so designate certain
areas as public use areas. Public Areas do not include
the AOA, Restricted Areas, and emplovee parking
lots.

Ramp — Those paved areas of the Airport within the
AOA  designated by the Authonty for parking,
loading, unloading, fueling, or servicing of aircraft.

Readily Available — Conveniently located (in close
proximity) and accessible, but not necessarily located
on the Leased Premises.

Refueling  WVehicle — Any  wvehicle used for
transporting, handling, or dispensing of fuels and
lubricants,

64

Texarkana Regional Airport Authority, Texarkana Regional Airport (10/04/2023)



o

TEXARKANA

Repair Station — A certificated Adrcraft Maimntenance

facility approved by the FAA to perform specific
maintenance functions. Repair Stations are certificated
under 14 CFR Part 145,

Restricted Area — Areas of the Airport, other than
Public Areas, wherein entry or use thereof is restricted
to authorized personnel (pursuant to applicable
federal, state, and local statutes and ordinances)
including, but not himited to the AOA, Runways,
Taxiways, Taxilanes, and fire lanes, fuel farm. Airport

maintenance  facilities/shop, mechanical rooms,
electrical vaults, computer server room, fire breaks
and any other areas marked/posted as restricted with
signage. or placards.

Rules and Regulations — PMCD that sets forth the
rules and regulations for the safe, secure, orderly, and
efficient use of the Airport, as may be amended from
time to time.

Runup — Aircraft engine operation above normal idle
power for purposes other than initiating or sustaining
taxiing or takeoft.

Runway — An area of the Airport developed and
improved for the purpose of accommodating the
landing and takeoft of aircraft.

Runway Safetv Area (RSA) - A delined surface

surrounding the Runway prepared or suitable for

reducing the risk of damage to aircraft in the event of
an undershoot, overshoot or excursion from the
Runway.

Secured Area — A portion of an airport, specified in
the Airport Security Program, in which certain
security measures specified in 49 CFR Part 1542 are
carried out. This area is where Aircraft Operators and
foreign air carriers that have a security program under
49 CFR Part 1544 or 1546 enplane and deplane
passengers and sort and load baggage and any
adjacent areas that are not separated by adequate
SECurity measures.

Security ldentification Display  Area (SIDA) - A
portion of the AOA identified in the Airport Security
Program where each person 15 required to
continuously display, on their outermost garment, an
airport approved 1dentification medium unless under
Authonty approved escort,

Rules and Regulations

APPENDIX B - PMCD DEFINITIONS AND ACRONYMS

Security Plan — A document developed by Operators
to ensure the safety and security of people and
property at the Airport,

Self-Fueling — The Non-Commercial fueling of an
aircraft by the Aircraft Owner or the Owner’s
Employee(s) using the Aircraft Owner’'s wvehicles,
Equipment, and resources.

Self-Service The servicing of an aircraft (i.e.,
maintaining, repairing. fueling, etc.) by the Aircraft

Owner or the Aircraft Owner’s Employees using the
Aircraft Owner’s vehicles, Equipment, and resources.

Skvdive/Parachute  Jumping - Jumping from an
aircraft at a moderate or high altitude and deploying a

parachute to create drag or lift for descent to the
around.

Special Event — Any event at the Airport whereby
individuals have unescorted access to the AOA or any
event that may or will require: the assistance of

Authority staff (outside the realm of typical duties):
the closure of any portion of any roadway, walkway,
vehicle parking area, Ramp, Taxilane, Taxiway, or
Runway; and/or the 1ssuance of an airspace waiver or
NOTAM.

Specialized Aviation Service Operator (SAS0) — A
Commercial Operator that provides any one or a
combination of the following Activities: Aircraft

Maintenance, avionics or nstrument maintenance,
aircraft rental or flight training, aircraft charter or
aircraft  management, aircraft  sales, and other
Commercial Aeronautical Activities,

Spill Prevention, Control, and Countermeasures Plan
(SPCC) — A written contingency plan defined by the
EPA that covers procedures, points of contact, the
chain of command, and individual responsibilities for
preventing and controlling spills.

Texarkana Regional Airport Rescue and Fire
Department (Fire Department) — The Authority Fire
Department providing aircralt rescue and fire services
as well as several community services to the
Authority.

Sterile Area — The area in the Passenger Terminal
Building beyond the security screening checkpoint(s).

65

Texarkana Regional Airport Authority, Texarkana Regional Airport (10/04/2023)



o

TEXARKANA

Student and Renter Liability -~ Insurance coverage

pertaining to bodily injury, personal injury, and
Property damage (excluding aircraft hull) for students
and renters of aircrafi.

Sublease — An agreement entered into by an entity
with a Lessee that transfers rights or interests in the
Lessee's Leased Premises and for which, the
Authority has given proper consent,

Sublessee — An entity that has entered into a Sublease
with a Lessee that has been properly consented to by
the Authornty.

Taxilane — The portion of the Ramp used for access
between Taxiways and Ramps. Taxilanes are always
outside the Movement Area and differentiated from a
Taxiway by the required Object Free Area
requirements stipulated by the FAA,

Taxiway — A defined path, vsually paved. over which
aircraft can taxi from one part of an airport to another
(excluding the Runway). ATC must have a clear line
of sight to all Taxiway centerlines. Additionally, a
Taxiway 1s further differentiated from a Taxilane by
the required Object Free Area requirements stipulated
by the FAA.

Rules and Regulations

APPENDIX B - PMCD DEFINITIONS AND ACRONYMS

Tenant — A person, Association, or entity that has
entered into an agreement with either the Authority or
Operator to occupy land and/or Improvements at the
Airport for commercial or non-commercial purposes.

Through-the-Fence — When an airport sponsor grants

an entity ground access by an aircraft across the
airport’s property boundary to the airport’s airside
infrastructure  {commonly  through-the-fence) and
permission to engage in associated activities from
property adjacent to the airport.

Tiedown — An area paved or unpaved suitable for
parking and mooring of aircraft wherein suitable
anchoring points and related equipment are located.

Transient Aircraft — Any aircraft utilizing the Airmport

for occasional or temporary purposes which is not a
Based Aireraft.

Vehicle Operator
physical control ot a vehicle.

Any person who is in actual

Weapons — Including, but not limited to, firearms, tear
@as, mace, pepper spray, or other similar devices,
materials, or substances) or explosives.

66

Texarkana Regional Airport Authority, Texarkana Regional Airport (10/04/2023)



P

TEXARKANA

B-2. Acronyms
A&P Mechanic

AC
ACM
ALP
AOA
APU
ARFF
ASP
ATC
Avgas
CFR
CVO
DEF
DHS
DOT
EPA
EPCRA
FAA
FM

FY
FBO
ME
NPIAS
NOTAM
SASO
SE
SIDA
SMS
SPCC Plan
SWPPP
TSA
UAS
UAV
UFC
UL
USPA

Rules and Regulations
Texarkana Regional Airport Authority, Texarkana Regional Awrport (70/04/2023)

APPENDIX B — PMCD DEFINITIONS AND ACRONYMS

Airframe and Powerplant Mechanic
Adwvisory Circular

Adrport Certification Manual
Airport Layout Plan

Adr Operations Area

Auxihary Power Unit

Aiarcraft Rescue and Fire Fighting
Airport Security Program

Air Traffic Control

Aviation Gasoline

Code of Federal Regulations
Commercial Vehicle Operator
Diesel Exhaust Fluid

Department of Homeland Security
Department of Transportation
Environmental Protection Agency

Emergency Planning and Community Right-to-Know Act

Federal Aviation Administration

Factory Mutual

Fiscal Year

Fixed Base Operator

Multi-Engine Aircraft

National Plan of Integrated Airport Systems
Notice To Air Mission

Specialized Aviation Service Operator
Single-Engine Aircraft

Security Identification Display Area

Safety Management System

Spill Prevention, Control, and Countermeasures Plan
Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan
Transportation Security Administration
Unmanned Aircraft System

Unmanned Aernal Vehicle

Universal Fire Code

Underwriters Laboratories

United States Parachute Association

67



RESOLUTION NO. 2023 - XXX

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
TEXARKANA, TEXAS, APPROVING THE TEXARKANA AIRPORT
AUTHORITY RULES AND REGULATIONS; UPDATE LANGUAGE IN
SECTION 4-26 OF THE MINICPAL CODE; AND ESTABLISHING AN
EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the Cities of Texarkana, Arkansas, and Texarkana, Texas, created the Texarkana
Airport Authority by means of reciprocal ordinances codified in Chapter 6 — Aviation, Article Il —
Texarkana Airport Authority, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Texarkana, Arkansas, and
Chapter 4 — Airports, Article Il — Airport Authority, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of
Texarkana, Texas; and

WHEREAS, the Joint Board of the Texarkana Airport Authority, adopted September 28, 2023, and
attached to this resolution as Exhibit “A”, Rules and Regulations; and

WHEREAS, the Airport Rules and Regulations must be approved by the City Council of Texarkana,
Texas, and the Board of Directors of Texarkana, Arkansas, per Section 4-26 of the municipal codes
of the City of Texarkana, Texas, and Section 6-32 of the City of Texarkana, Arkansas; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
TEXARKANA, TEXAS:

SECTION 1: That Rules and Regulations of the Texarkana Regional Airport Authority, as prepared
by the Airport Executive Director is hereby adopted and approved.

SECTION 2: The City of Texarkana, Texas Cod of Ordinances Section 4-26 shall be updated to
read: The authority may propose such bylaws and rules governing its functions in the operation of the
airport as it deems best, provided however, that said rules and bylaws shall not be in conflict with the
constitution and statutes of the State of Arkansas and the State of Texas or the ordinances of the City of
Texarkana, Arkansas, and the City of Texarkana, Texas. The proposed bylaws and rules must be
approved by both the governing bodies of Texarkana, Arkansas and Texarkana, Texas, before the same
shall be effective and said governing bodies by joint action may amend, alter or repeal any bylaw, rule
or regulation. Copies of which shall be kept on file in the offices of the city clerk and the airport director.
Violation of such rules and regulations shall constitute a misdemeanor.

SECTION 3: This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and
approval.

PASSED AND APPROVED in Regular Council Session on this the day of November, 2023.

ATTEST:

JENNIFER EVANS, CITY SECRETARY BOB BRUGGEMAN, MAYOR



	Top
	1.	proclamation - small business saturday
	item_11202023_ccd_small business saturday

	2.	minutes
	item_11202023_ccd_minutes
	item_2_11062023_minutes

	3.	Reschedule Board meeting
	11202023_admin_reschedule meeting
	Item 3 Reschedule Meeting

	4.	airport rules and regulations
	item_11202023_airport_Agenda Form - Rules-Regs - Arkansas
	Item 4 Ordinance Airport
	item_11202023_airport_2023-xxx Briefing Sheet Info_Airport Rules-Regs
	item_4_11202023_airport_Rules andRegulations-100423
	item_11202023_airport_2023-XXX RES Airport Rules-Regs

	Bottom

